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VISION STATEMENT

Our office 1s 1in the market

MISSION STATEMENT

We the people of Murree Brewery Co. Ltd. make our personal commitment to
first understand our customers' requirement then to meet and exceed their
expectations, by performing the correct tasks on time and every time through:

C ontinuous improvement
A lignment of our missions and goals
R esponsibility and respect of our jobs and each other

E ducate one another
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ESTABLISHED 1860
CORPORATE INFORMATION

BOARD OF MRECTORS
Charrman-Non Executive Director
CEOQ Ihrector-Executive Director
mon-Executive Director
Non-Executive Derector
Independent Director

Independent Dhrector

Independent Dhrector

Independent Director

PRINCIPAL OFFICERS

Company Secretary

Choef Firnancial Officer

Head of Internal Audit

General Manager { Browery Division )
Business Manager (Murree Glass)
Flant Manager i M !y
Cieneral Manager (Tops)

Factory Manager (Murree Sparkletts)

ALDIT & RISK
MANAGEMEN NVMITTEE

HEMAN RESOURCE & REMUNERATION

AND NOMINATION COMMITTEE

AUDITORS
M's KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co,
Chartered Accountants.

6" Floor, State Life Bldg,
Jinnah Avenuoe, Islamabad

Ch. Mucen Afzal

Me. Isphanyar M. Bhandars
Mr. Aamir Hussam Shirar
Mrs. Goshi M. Bhandara
Prof. Khalid Axiz Mirza
Mr. Shahbaz Haider Agha
Mr. Pervair Akhtar

Ms. Jahanara 5ajjad Ahmad

Ch. Wagar A. Kahloon
Mr. Muhammad Khurshid
Mr Faka Ullah Malik
Mr. Fakher-e-Mahmood
Mr. Arshad Zaheer

Mr. Zaka ud Dhn

Mr. Talar Yagoob Awan
Mr. Fayvyar Ahmad

Mr, Shahbar Haider Agha  {Chairman)
Ch. Muzen Afeal (Member)
Prof, Khalid Az Mirea { Member)
Mrs, Goshi A Bhandara i Member)
Ms. Jahanara Sajjad Ahmad (Member)

Prof. Khalid Aziz Mirra {Chairman)
Ch. Mueen Alzal (Member)
Are Aamir Hussamm Shirari [ Member)
Ar Isphanyar M. Bhandara (Member)
Mr. Pervair Akhtar { Member)

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Askari Commercial Bank Lid, Islamabad

Standard Chartered Bank, [slamabad

Mational Bank of Pakistan, Rawalpind: / Hattar

Bank Alfalah Lid, Rawalpindi

The Hank of Khyber, Hatar

Allied Bank Lid, BwpLhr'Gupranw/F. Abad Multan
Sahrwal Murmree Sargodha

United Bank Limited, Islamabad.
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

Murree Brewery Company Limited

3-National Park Road, Rawalpind:

Tel: 051-53567T04 147, Fax: 05153584420

E-mail: _murree brewenyi muneebrewery.com
murbria cyber.net pi

Website: www mumechrewery.com

FACTORIES

Murree Brewery Company Limited
Y-National Park Foad, Rawalpinds

Tel: O51-5567041-47, Fax: O51-5534420

Tops Food & Beverages
I-Mational Park Road, Rawalpinds
Tel: 05]-556T04 147, Fax: 051-5565461

Plog Mo, 14/1, Phase 111, Industnal Estate,
Hattar, Dhstnct Hanpur (K.PK)
Tel: (RO5-617013, 617493, 6174594

Murree Sparkletts
Plot Mo, 1072, Phase 111, Industrial Estate,

Hattar, Dhstrict Hanpur (K.Pk)

121/3, Industnal Estate, Kot Lakhpat,
Lahore.

& Calass

Plot No. 24, Phase 111, Industrial Estate,
Hartar, Distnet Hanpur (K.PK)

Tel: 0R995-H17233, (95617188

DISTRIBUTION OFFICES

Tops Food & Beverages

12173, Industrial Estate, Kot Lakhpat,
Lahore, {Tel: 042-5117500)

Artr Chowk Pindi Byvpass,
Cialla Sonica Industry, (.T. Road,
CGupranwala (Tel: D35-3891571)

Mansoorm Abad

Mear Sant Sing Railway Gate
Jumra Hoad, Faisalabad

Tel: (41-B5221R2 & 2420580

1648, Near Winter Time,
Small Industrics Estate, Sahiwal
Mobile: D335-36111258

Ratti Gali, Ayubia Road, Murree
Mob: 03355111047

{vi)

(1)

[}

Plot No. 2B-B Small

Industnial Estate Cpp.

Siddique Kantawala Main

Lahore Road, Sargodha

Aob: 03355611103

SHARE REGISTRAR

CDC Share Registrar Services Limited
CDC House 99-B, Block *B" SMCHS, Main
Shahra-e-Faisal Karachi-T400,

Tel: A(92-21501011-111-500

Faxw: +(92-21 W34 126053, Fmalanfoi cdesmsl.com

Hamid Law Assoctates,
S04 10, Alfalak I-luildmp.
Shahrah-¢-Oruasd-g-Aram
Lahore. Tel: 042-630]1E01

Mr. Umer Abdullah { Advocaie)

Chaudhary Law Associates

Advocate High Court

Flats No, $ & 6, I¥ Floor, MICCOP Center,
1. Morang BEoad, Lahore

Cell 8 0300-84 30877, 03458412222

{111} Mr. Muhammad [lyvas Sheikh

(n

(i

House Mo, 37, Street Moo 02, Mohalla
Phase 5, Bahna Town, |slamahad.

TAN ADVISORS

Mascem Lalar Associates

| -Commercial Building,
Shahrah-e-Quaid-e-Aram, Lahore,
Tel: (42-37314315-16

Sheikh Law Associates

G 313-316, Imran Mansion,

Gordon College Road, Rawalpinds,

Ph: 051-5770500 Website; www.sla net pk

M's KPMG Taseer Hadi & Cao,
Chartered Accouniants,

6™ Floor, State Life Bldg,
Jinnah Avenue, Islamabad.

CORPORATE ADVISOR

RS Corporate Advisory

First Floor, Plot Ko, 62, Central Commercial
Area (CCA), Block-T, Phase -1, Defence
Housing Authority , Lahore Canti-Pakistan
Tel: +92 42 357 47 904

Websile: wwww moorporalé com



Annual Reparf. 2022

b”#fﬂ? tﬂm @f;ﬁﬂ?w

Dma:{&w

Ch. Mueen Afzal

Chalrman -Non Executive Director

Ch. Mucen Afral after getting his MA Degree from Oxford University joined the Civil Service
of Pakistan in 1964, finally retinng from Government Service in 2002. While in service, he held
several important positions which included Finance Secretary in Balochistan (1981-84), Finance
Secretary in the Punjab (1984-86), Economic Minister in the Pakistan Embassy in Washington,
D. C, USA (1987-90). Later, he was Health Secretary, Government of Pakistan (1995-96),
Finance Secretary in Islamabad (1996-1998) and Secrctary General, Finance & Economic
affairs from 1999-2002.

He was awarded Hilal-e-Imtiaz for distinguished public service in 2003 by the Government of
Pakistan.

After his retirement from the civil service, he held a number of appointments in the corporate
sector. At present, he is Chairman of the Board of Murree Brewery Company Ltd, and member
of Audit and Risk Management Committee as well as HR & Remuneration and Nomination
Commuttee. He was Chairman of the Board of Pakistan Tobacco Company and as well as
Chairman of Akzo Nobel Pakistan.

He is a founder director of the Pakistan Centre of Philanthropy and on the Board of
Beaconhouse, National University. He is also Chairman of IDEAS, a think tank which
concentrates on research in to various aspects of public policy.
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Mr. Isphanyar M. Bhandara

CE(/Director - Executive DNrector

Mr. Isphanyar M. Bhandara started his family business, Murree Brewery Co. Lid. Rawalpindi,
one of the oldest public limited companies of the sub-continent in 1997,

Joined Board of Directors of the company in 1998. Before this he has significant exposure to
fields operation including production, project development, development planning, conceptual
engineering and operation supports in the brewery and its other divisions.

In June, 2005 became Executive Director till 2008, In June, 2008 was appointed as Chief
Executive Officer of the Murree Brewery Group of Companies on the demise of his father.

The Company has also other divisions manufacturing food products, fruit juices, mineral water,
non-alcoholic products and glass containers. The traditional activities of the Company are
brewing and distilling of fine liquors and beers. With the passage of time the company has
increased the product lines and capacity as well.

= Holds a Master Degree in Business & Administration.

» Ex-Member of the National Assembly of Pakistan on scat reserved for Minonties (2013-2018).

o Currently President of Rawalpindi Parsi Anjuman.

e Representing and helping following Minority communities of Pakistan Parsi, Sikhs, Baha'is,
Buddhists, Kalash and doing other social and welfare activities.

o Attended various LUMS workshops on business,

 Completed Directors’ Training Program from Pakistan Institute of Corporate Governance.
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Mr. Aamir Hussain Shirazi
Non-Executive Director

Mr. Aamir Hussain Shirazi is the President of Atlas Group.

He has over 36 years of corporate management experience. He has to his credit, work experience
in Honda - Amenica. Besides working at various positions in Atlas Group, he also served as the
Chief Executive of Atlas Honda.

He is currently the Chairman of Honda Atlas Cars (Pakistan) Limited, Atlas Honda Limited,
Atlas Battery Limited, Atlas Engincering (Private) Limited, and Atlas Autos (Private) Limited.
He serves on the Boards of Shirazi Investments, Shirazi Trading and Murree Brewery. He was
appointed as a Director on the Board of Lahore Stock Exchange for two consecutive terms by the
Secuntics & Exchange Commission of Pakistan,

He is currently a member of the Board of Governors of Lahore University of Management
Science. He serves as an Honorary Consul General of Japan and is the Patron-in-Chief of
Pakistan Japan Cultural Association in Lahore.

He graduated from the Claremont McKenna College and completed his OPM from the Harvard
Business School.
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Mrs. Goshi M. Bhandara

Non-Executive Director

Due to untimely death of Mr. M. P, Bhandara in June, 2008, Mrs. Goshi M Bhandara was invited
to join MBC Board against casual vacancy. Since then she is on the Board. She is also member

of Audit and Risk Management Commuttee.

Mr. Shahbaz Haider Agha

Independent Director
He got his bachelor's degree in finance from Indiana University, USA and an executive MBA
degree from NCB&E, Lahore. He has 32 years’ expenence of Insurance Industry in Pakistan,
Currently he is working as CEOQ with Hellenic Sun Insurance Brokers (Pvt.) Ltd. He served as
director on the board of Capital Investment Bank Ltd. in 2015-16. He also served as director on
the Board of Samba Bank Ltd. since 2015-17. He is an Honorary Consul General of Greece in
Lahore since 2007. He is a Board member of Zahidjee Textiles Ltd. & Premuer Sugar Mills Lid.
He is the Chairman of Bhandara Foundation, a Trustee of A New Beginning and Mohammad

Raza Farooq Memonal Trust.
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Prof. Khalid Aziz Mirza

Independent Director

Mr. Mirza is a Masters of Commerce (M.Com) from University of Punjab, Lahore, and has also
been awarded an honorary doctorate degree by the Institute of Business Management, Karachi.
He has about 53 years of work expenence.

Mr. Mirza served for about seven years in various positions in Investment Corporation of
Pakistan (ICP), and then for over 6 years in the Credit & Finance Corporation, a merchant bank
in London. Subsequently, for about two decades, he remained on the professional investment
stafl of the Intemational Finance Corporation (IFC) (Member, World Bank Group). Besides this,
he has also served as the founding Chairman of Securities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan
(three years); Sector Manager for Financial Sector Development, East Asia & Pacific Region,
The World Bank, Washington DC, USA (about four years); Chairman and Chicf Executive,
Menopoly Control Authority (one year); founding Chairman and Chief Executive Competition
Commussion of Pakistan (three years), and Member, Competition Appellate Tribunal {about
cight months). Mr. Mirza joined the Lahore University of Management Sciences (LUMS) in
2010 and 1s at present Professor of Practice. Mr. Mirza is also an Independent Director and
Chairman of the Board of both Onix Leasing Pakistan Limited as well as the Board of Awwal
Modaraba, and an Independent Director on the Boards of Silkbank and Murree Brewery
Company Limited. Recently, he was appointed Chairman, Securities and Exchange Policy
Board,

Significant among his regular consultancy assignments are Finance Consultant, WAPDA: and
Evaluator, Investment Evaluation Unit, The World Bank Group.
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Mr. Pervaiz Akhtar
Independent Director

Career: Mr. Akhtar graduated in 1976 from University of Punjab with majers in Economics. He
later attended an MBA program at School of Business and Commerce Islamabad and secured
distinction in Business Policy & Strategy and Human Resource Management. He completed his
professional training with Klynveld Peat Marwick Goerdeler (KPMG) and passed Institute of
Chartered Accountants of Pakistan ( Inter) examination in 1981, In 1989 Mr. Akhtar was awarded
a USAID scholarship and he completed Petroleum Management Program at Arthur D, Little Inc
Boston, US.A.

Mr. Akhtar is responsible for METRO's Corporate Affairs since 2007, Being part of the senior
management team, he has contributed towards successfully establishing the METRO Pakistan’s
business in Pakistan. Prior to joining METRO, he served as General Manager Corporate Affairs
for a Dutch Multinational Company (SHV Energy) for over 9 years. Mr, Akhtar has a versatle
experience of more than 35 years of working with local and multinational companies in Pakistan.
During this period, he served in senior management positions in the field of Finance, Human
Resources, Procurement and Corporate Affairs.

Mr. Akhtar is a Certified Director from the Pakistan Institute of Corporate Governance. He 1s
also an independent Director on the Board of Directors of LOTTE Chemical Pakistan Limited
and in June 2020 was re-elected to the Board for the third term and currently is the Chaiman of
the Audit Committee and Chairman of HR & Remuneration Commuttee,

Outside inleresis

Director Corporate AfTairs  METRO Pakistan (P'vi) Lud

Director Star Farm Pakistan (Pvt) Limited (METRO Group Company)
Director CABI-SFPK Joint Venture

Independent Director-LOTTE Chemical Pakistan Limited

Director CORE
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Beard ef Directers

Ms. Jahanara Sajjad Ahmad, FCA

Independent Director

Ms Jahanara Sajjad Ahmad, FCA is o fellow member of the Institute of Chanered
Accountants of Pakistan. She has 20 years of post-qualification experience in finance, audn,
capital markets, Islamic inance and corporate governance.

Currently, Jahanara is the Executive Director Corporate Govermnance and Group Financial
Advisor to the Bibojee Group of Companies,

Previously she has worked in the UAE in the field of Comporate Governance with Dubai Parks
and Resorts PJSC and Hawkamah, the Institute of Corporate Governance, based in Duba
Intermational Financial Centre. At Dubai Parks, Jahanara lead the process of the Company's
participation in the 2016 Ethical board room Corporate Governance Awards, which Dubai Parks
won and helped position the Company as the market leader in terms of govemance frameworks
and practices.

At Hawkamah, Jahanara provided consultancy to various GCC Companies, including State
Owned Companies and Islamic Banks, and assisted them in sctting up their Corporate
Governance frameworks and practices in accordance with international best practice, She
developed the Middle East's first Code of Corporate Governance for the Dubai Real Estate
Developers. Jahanara was dnving Hawkamah's Task Forces on Corporate Governance of State
Owned Enterprises, Islamic Banks and Insolvency and Debtor Creditor Rights systems and
implementation of the policy recommendations culminating out of the work of the Task Forces
throughout the MENA region

Prior to joining Hawkamah, she was Director Secuninies Market Division at the Sccuritics and
Exchange Commussion ol Pakistan where she was responsible for regulating the primary capital
market of Pakistan, ensuning adequate disclosures in the prospectuses of companies proposing to
be listed on the Pakistan and the Intemational Stock Exchanges, licensing of Special Purpose
Vehicles, monitoring the implementation of the Takcovers and Acquisition Law. Jahanara was

the Chairperson of the working group established for the Development of Debt Capital Market of
Pakistan and has represented the SECP at Board Meetings of the Privatization Commuission.

10
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Jahanara has also worked with Monson Stoneham Chartered Accountants in London (mow
known as the Tenon Group Plc). Jahanara is an IFC certified trmmer on Corporate Governance
and has been invited to speak on Corporate Governance both regionally and intermationally. She
is the Co-Author of the Chapter on “The Arab Spring emphasizes better corporate governance of
state-owned enterpnses”, published by the OECD.

Jahanara has also served on the Board of Linde Pakistan Ltd (now known as Pakistan Oxygen
Ltd) as o Non-Executive Director (NIT Nominee Director) from January 2017 till the change of
control of the Company in January 2015,

Ms. Jahanar served as a member of the Pakistan Audit Oversight Board as well.

She s currently a Board member of Fau)ji Cement Company Ltd and Murree Brewery Company
Led.

11
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Ch. Wagar A. Kahloon

Company Secretary

Muhammad Khurshid Zaka Ullah Malik

Chiet Financial Officer Head of Internal Audit

12
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NOTI IF 158" ANNUAL GENERAL M NG

Motice is hereby given that the 155" Annual General Mecting of the Company (AGM) will be held at its
Registered Office, 3-National Park Road, Rawalpindi on Tuesday, October 25, 2022 at 930 am. 1o transact the
fllowing business:

ORDINARY RUSINESS
1. To recerve, consider and adopt the Annual Audited Financial Statements of the Company together with the
Directors” and Auditor’s Reports for the year ended June 30, 2022 and Chairman’s Review Report

3. To approve the payment of final cash dividend of 100% ie. Rs. 10/« per share of Rs. 10 cach, as
recommended by the Board of Directors. This is in addition to the interim dividends of 250% ve. Rs. 25/~ per
share already declared and paid to the sharcholders, thus, making a total cash dividend of 150%. 1e. Ra. 35/-
per share for the year ended June 30, 2022

1. To appoint Auditors of the Company and to fix their remuncranon. The members are hereby notified that the
Audit & Risk Management Committce and Board of Directors have recommended the appointment of
retiring Auditors, M/s KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co. Chartered Accountants, as auditors of the Company for the
year ending June 30, 2023,

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD

e
Raw alpindi Ch. Wagar A. kahloon
October 04, 2022 Company Secretary

NOTES:

CLOSURE OF SHARE TRAMSFER BOGORS

The share transfer books of the Company will remain closed and no transfer of shares wall be accepted for
registration from October 19, 2022 to October 25, 2022 (both days inclusive). Transfers received in onder at
“CDC Share Registrar Services Limited, CDC House, 99-B, Block B, SMCHS., Main Shahrah-e-Faisal,
farachi™ at the close of business (5§ pm) on October 1K, 2022 will be treated m time for the purpose of
entitlement of cash dividend and to attend, speak and vole at the AGM

RIGHT TOAPPOINT PROXY

A member 15 entitled 1o eppoint a proxy in hisher place to attend and vote instead of himher. The instrument
appomting a proxy, duly stamped and signed, and the power of attomey or other authority (if any ) under which i
is signed or a notarially certified copy of the power of attomey or authority must be deposited at the Registered
Oftfice of the Company, 3-National Park Road, Rawalpindi not later than 48 hours (excluding non-working days)
before the time of the meeting. A proxy must be 2 member of the Company. Form of proxy in Englsh and Lindu
Language is enclosed herewith

FOR ATTESDIMNG THE MEETING:

L In case of individuals, the account bolders or sub-account bolders and'or the persons whose securifics are in
group account and thetr registration details are uploaded as per the regulations, shall authenticate their
identity by showing their onginal Computerized National ldentity Card {CNIC) or origmal passport at the
hme of attending the meeting.

il In case of corporate entities, the Board of Directons” resolution/power of attorney with specimen signature of
the nominces shall be produced (unless o has been provided earlier) ot the trme of the meetimg

13
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FOR APPOINTING PROXITES:

L A member may appoint any member of the Company (u's 137(1Nd) of the Companies Act. 2017) as a proxy
to attend and vole on his [ her behall, Prosies in order to be effective must be receved ol the Registered
HTice of the Company duly stamped and stgned not less than 48 hours before the meeting.

L In case of individuals, the sccount holders or sub-account holders and 'or the persons. whose secunties are
group account and their registration details are uploaded as per the regulations. shall submit the proxy form as
pert the above requirements.

fii. The proxy form shall be witnessed by wo persons whose names, addresses and CNIC numbers shall be
mentioned on the form.

v, Anested copies of CNIC or the passport of the beneficial owners and the proxy shall be fumished with the
proxy form.

¥. The proxies shall produce ther ongmal CNIC or ongmal passport at the time of meeting

¥k In case of corporate entities, the Board of Directons” resalution power of attormey with specimen signature of
the person pominated to represent and vote on behall of the corporate entity, shall be subrmitied {unless 11 has
been provided earlier) along with proay form to the Company,

DEDUCTION OF RATES OF INCOME TAX FOR ACTIVE TAX PAYER AND NON-ACTIVE TAX
FAYER:

Under the provisions of Section 150 of Income Tax Ordmance, 2001 rates of withholding income tax on dividend
will be as follows

Rate of tax deduction for sharcholders appearing in the Active Tax Pavers hist | 3%
Rate of tax deduction for sharcholders not appeanng in the Active Tax Payvers list | 30%

1
-
Fl

In case of jount acoount, each holder is 1o be reated imndwdually as enther actve or pon-active tax payer and tax
will be deducted on the basis of sharcholding of each joint bolder as may be notified by the sharcholder, m
writing as [ollows, to our Share Registrar, otherwise, each joint bolder shall be assumed 1o have an equal mumbser
of shares.

Pnncipal Shareholder Jount Shareholder
Folio / CDS Toul | Named | “rarcholding Name & i
Account Mo, Shares CMIC Mo l."-'ln. ulfﬁl ) CRIC Mo Ir'«-'lu. 1.1'1' Sharci)

The CKIC number / NTH detail is now mandatory and s required for checking the tax status as per the Active
Taxpayers List (ATL) issued by the Federal Board of Revenue (FBR) from tims (o time

EXEMPTION FROM DEDUCTION OF INCOME TAX  ZAKAT:

Members secking exemption from deduction of income tax or are eligible for deduction at & reduced rate, are
requested o submit o vabd tax exemption certificate or necessary documentary evidence as the case may be.
Members desimng non-deduction of rakat are also requested to submit o valid declaration for pon-deduction of
zakat.

COROMNAYIRLS CONTINGESCY PLANNING FOR AGM;

In view of the mstructions of the Government / SECT 0 hight of escalating number of Coronavinis Pandemic
cases, the Company inlends fo convene this AGM with minimal physical interachon of sharcholders while
ensuring comphance with the quonim requirements and requests the members o consolidate their attendance and

14
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voting at the AGM through pronics. The meeting can be stiended wsing smart phones tablets'computers. To
attend the meeting through video Ik, the members and thewr proases are requesied to register themsehves by
providing the following information along with valid copy of CNIC / passport with the subject “Regustration for
.'u'lfm.: Brewery Company Limited AGM™ through email at general meetings‘a murrechrewery com on or before
227 Oetober, 2022

SName of CNIC Mo, CI Account Cell Namber Email
member Sn'Folio So. Address

|

The members wha are registered after the necessary venification shall be provided a video link by the
Company on the same emal address that are provided 1o the Company. The Login facility will remain open
from start of the meeting 1l ifs procecdings are concluded

The sharcholders who wish 10 send their comments’ suggestions on the agenda of the AGM can email the
Company at general mectingsa murrechrewery.com or WhatsApp st 0331-5880900. The Company shall
enmsure that comments’ suggestions of the sharcholders will be read out af the mecting and the responses will
be made part of the minutes of the meeting.

CHAMGE OF ADDRESS:
MMembers are requested 1o prompily notify any change of address to the Company's Share Registrar “CDC Share
Registrar Services Limated, COC House, 99-B, Block ‘B, S M.C H.5 ., Main Shahrah-e-Faisal, Karachi™,

AVAILABILITY OF AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ON COMPANYS WERSITE:

The audited financial statements of the Company for the year ended June 30, 2022 along with Directors” &
Audiior™s Report, Chairman’s Beview Heport, Moboe of AGM and other related materials have been made
available on the Company’s website wws.murtecbreswery.com, in sddition o annual and quarerly financial
statemnents for the prior years.

PAYMENT OF CASH DIVIDEAD THROUGH ELECTRONIC MODE

Section 242 of the Act requires that the listed companies shall pay cash dividend ooly through electronic mode
directly into the bank account designated by the shareholders. SECP vide its notification 5. R.0,1145 (1p2017 has
also issued the Companies [Distnbution of Dividends) Regulations, 2017 whereby every shareholder shall be
responsible to provide valid information pertaining to its designated bank socount o disburse any dividensd
payable in cash only through electronic mode directly into the bank sccount designated by the entitled
sharcholders

In this regand, the Company has slready communicated through 15 letters addressed o the sharcholders
individually along with newspapers publications requesting to provide the Imternational Bank Accounts Number
(*1BANT) designated by the sharcholders (o receive the cash dividends electronically, Hence, shareholders are
requested to Till the required fields of the Company’s letier avalable on website of the Company:
www.morrecbrewery com and send the same to the Share Registrar and Transfer Agent of the Company. In case
of shares held as book-entry secuntics, the said informabon would be requered to be provided to Central
Depository System (“CDS™), through CDS Panicipants

USTCLAIMED DIVIIESD ASDSHARE CERTIFICATES

The Company has uploaded an wpdated list of sharcholders on its website (hitps2/'www murreebrewery. comj
whose dividends or share certificates are available with the Company which have remained unclaimed or unpaid
for a peniod of three years from the date these have become due and payable.

Therefore, sharcholders, who have not collected their dividend or shares certificates so far, are requestad o

contact Company's Share Registrar “CID Share Registrar Semvices Limited, CDC House, %9-B, Black B,
5 MO HS, Main Shahrah-g-Faisal, Karachi 1o ¢laim dradend or share certificates.
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CHAIRMAN'S REVIEW

It is with pleasure that | present the 155™ annual report and audited financial statements of the
Company for the year ended June 30, 2022, 1o our valued sharcholders.

In exercising its responsibilities, the Board continued to actively interact with the
management to identify nsks to the business to maximize shareholders’ interests and to
anticipate issues concerning the Company's overall performance. The Board was fully
involved in the Company's strategic planning processes and it remained committed 1o
ensuring high standards of Corporate Governance. The Board’s performance is reflected in
the Annual Report for the financial year ended June 30, 2022,

The Boand has outsourced the Company’s internal audit function to M/s BDO Ebrahim & Co.
with effect from 31-05-2022, Intemnal audit reports are presented to the Board's Audit & Risk
Management Committee on a quarterly basis, and the Internal Control Processes as well as
potential nsks to the Company are regularly reviewed. The Board would like to convey its
thanks to the outgoing auditors, EY Ford Rhodes.

As required under the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019,
the Board carried out its self-evaluation with the assistance of M/s FAMCO Associates, to
ensurc that the Board's overall performance and effectivencss continues to be measured
against best practices. During the process of evaluation, the performance of the Board's sub-
committees and CEO were also analyzed. All present directors are either duly certified or
exempted, The Company is fully compliant with the training requirements of management
and staff, as prescribed by the Regulator.

The Board of Directors of the Company received the agenda and supporting written material,
including follow-up matenal, in sufficient time prior to the Board and its Committee
meetings. The Board meets frequently to adequately discharge its responsibilities. The non-
executive and independent directors are equally involved in all the proceedings and decisions.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to record the satisfactory performance of the
management and staff, in dealing with matters pertaining to finance, taxation and corporate

compliance.

| am pleased to state that duning the year on record that the Directors performed their duties
with responsibility and that the Company’s bottom line was healthy,

r:ﬂl.{:ﬁm?ﬁfal

Chairman

Rawalpindi September 22, 2022
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DIRECTORS' REPORT
For the year ended June 30, 2022

The Board of Directors takes pleasure in presenting the Annual Report on the performance and
progress of Murree Brewery Company Limited (*the Company™) together with the Annual

Audited Financial Statements for the year ended June 30, 2022

BUSINESS REVIEW OF THE COMPANY

The Company has completed 162 years of continuous operations and is one of the oldest
companies quoted on the Pakistan Stock Exchange.

The Company continucs with its policies to add value to sharcholders, to invest in 1ts employees
and processes and to improve quality of its products,

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

Sales revenue (Net) Increased by

Giross Profit Increased by
Profit before Taxation Increased by
Profit after Taxation

Increased by

Earnings per share Increased by

The profit after tax of the Company increased under challenging operating conditions which is a

Overall Financial Overview & Highlights

from

from

from

from

froem

1,668

1.291

Rs. 46,68

testimony to the dedication and commitment of the management.

ii.  Divisional Operating Results

The results of our divisions were:
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a. Liquor Division

2012 Y 2021 %
Hs. in million Rs. in million
Sales exclusive of applicable taxes 11,639 | 9.049
Ciost of sales (9,171) | (78.8) (6,897) (76.2)
' Giross profit 2,468 21.2 2152 238
Operating profit 1,630 14.0 1.372 | 152
b.  Glass Division
B 2022 % | 2021 %
o Rs. in million | Hs. in million
Sales exclusive of applicable taxes 1,965 I 1,750 |
Cost of sales {1,450) (73.8) | (1.334) | (76.2)
Ciross profit 514 26.2 416 | 217
Operating profit 427 21.7 178 21.6
Gilass Containers sales 31,077 | Metnic Tons 32,161 | Meinec Tons
. lops Division
N 2022 % 2021 7
| Rs. in million . Rs.in million ]
Sales exclusive of applicable taxes ~ 4.18] 2,977 |
Cost of sales (3.593) | (86.6) (2.568) | (¥6.2)
‘Gross profit 557 RE 404 13.7
| Operating (Loss) (62) | (1.5) (661 (2.4)

IMPORTANT ISSUES:

i. Gas Infrastructure Development Cess (GIDC):
The honorable Supreme Court of Pakistan decided the matter of GIDC in favor of the
Government on 13* August, 2020, Subsequent to the decision, review petitions were filed
by the companies but the Supreme Court upheld its carlier decision. Company has alrcady
provided for the GIDC expense in its financial statements on 30™ June, 2020, GIDC

mstallments have been paid in full Rs. 284,209,640/~ as on August 25, 2022,

ii. Tax on water consumption for commercial use:
The Supreme Court of Pakistan announced taxation of the beverage industry @ Re. | per
liter of surface and underground water which would not be passed on 1o the consumers. The
order issued effective from December 2018 applics to all industries consuming water in
Pakistan, the Rules for which have not yet been issued. The beverage industry has lodged a
review petition, which is pending in the Supreme Court.

18
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FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board of Directors of the Company has recommended a final cash dividend of Rs. 10 per
share for the year ended June 30, 2022 bringing the full year payout to Rs. 35 per share
(350" - previous vear 300%:). This shall be subject to the approval of Sharcholders at ther
meeting scheduled on October 25, 2022,

RISK AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Company’s main risks in the short term are the payment'demand of Late Payment Surcharge
(LPS) for rate differential of Sui Gas bills amounting to Rs. 130 mullion (approx.). The matter of
LPS on tanff is pending adjudication with OGRA. The Company has paid Rs. 539.8 million as
LPS out of Rs. 130 million demanded by SNGPL. This concems whole industry.

PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING
The total number of Company’s sharcholders as at June 30, 2022 was 1,226 apainst 1,223 on
June 30, 2021. The pattern of sharcholding as on June 30, 2022 and its disclosure 1s annexed.

EARNINGS PER SHARE
Eamings per share for the year ended June 30, 2022 is Rs. 46.78 as against Rs. 36,68 of
preceding year,

INTERNAL AUDIT AND CONTROL

The internal audit function has been outsourced to M/s BDO Ebmahim & Co., Chartered
Accountants a renowned firm and Head of Internal Audit has been appointed to coordinate with
them who reports to the Audit & Risk Management Committee.

COMPANY'S RISK FRAMEWORK AND INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM

The Company envisions that risk management is a core component of the management of the
Company and, therefore, has developed risk management program which is comprised of a senes
of processes, structures and guidelines which assist the Company to identify, assess, monitor and
manage its nisks,

Further, the Company has clearly defined the responsibility and authority of management to
oversee and manage the risk management program in light of day-to-day needs of the Company.

Moreover, the Company has constituted Risk Management Committec in order to promote
effective nisk management and internal control systems and processes. The Committee provides
regular reports to the Board on the effectiveness of the risk management program in identifying
and addressing material business risks,

COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD

The Company conforms to the regulatory requirements on the composition and qualification of
the Board of Directors. The total number of directors 1s eight (08). Category wise composition of
the Board was:

19
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i Male
. Female
Category

a) Independent Directors

b) MNon-Executive Directors

c) Executive Director
d) Female Directors

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

Six
Two

Audit & Risk Management Committee:
The Audit & Risk Management Committee performed its functions under the Listed
Companics (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 (“the Regulations™) and
comprses of three independent directors and two non-exceutive directors as under:

Mr. Shahbaz Haider Agha
Ch. Muecen Afral

Prof. Khald Aziz Mirza
Mrs. Goshi M. Bhandara
Ms. Jahanara Sajjad Ahmad

Names

Prof. Khalid Aziz Mirza
Mr. Shahbaz Haider Agha
Mr. Pervaiz Akhtar

Ms. Jahanara Sajjod Ahmad

Ch. Mueen Afzal
Mr. Aarmur Hussain Shirazi
Mrs, Goshi M. Bhandara

Mr. Isphanyar M. Bhandara

Mrs. Goshi M. Bhandara
Ms. Jahanara Sajjad Ahmad

{Chairman)
{Member)
{Member)
{Member)
{Member)

The Chairman of Audit & Risk Management Committee is an independent Director

HR & Remuneration and Nomination Committee:

The HR & Remuneration and Nomination Committee constituted under the Regulations
compnises of two independent directors, an executive director and two non-execulive
directors, the detail of which is mentioned below;

Prof. Khalid Aziz Mirza
Ch. Mueen Afzal

Mr. Aamir Hussam Shiran
Mr. Isphanyar M. Bhandara
Mr. Pervaiz Akhtar
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The Chairman of HR & Remuneration and Nomination Committee is also an independent
Darector.

STATEMENT O CORPORATE AND FINANCIAL REPORTING FRAMEWORK
The Directors state that;

A

The financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2022 prepared by the management
of the Company fairly present its state of affairs, the result of operations, cash flows and
changes in equity.

Proper books of accounts of the Company have been maintained,

Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in the preparation of
financial statements and accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent
Judgment.

Intermational Financial Reporting Standards, as applicable in Pakistan, have been
followed in the preparation of the financial statements.

The system of internal control is sound in design and has been effectively implemented
There are no significant doubts about the Company’s ability to continue as a gowng
CONCEm

There are no statutory payments on account of taxes, levies and charges outstanding as on
June 30, 2022, except as disclosed in the financial statements

There has been no material departure from the best practices of Corporate Governance as
detailed in the listing regulations.

Key operating and financial data of the last six years in summarnized form are annexed.
The value of the Provident Fund and Pension Fund (un-audited) investment at June 30,
2022 was Rs. 158599 million (Audited 2021: Rs. 148871 million) and Rs. 78.93 million
{Audited 2021: Rs. 71.06 million) respectively.

During the year 2021-22, five (05) Board meetings, four (04) Audit & Risk Management
Committee meetings and two (02) HR & Remuneration and Nemination Commitice
meetings were held

Anendance of members of the Board and its Committees are as under:

NAME OF DIRFCTOR | BOARD OF DIRECTORS ““tld'::l:::::‘;m ':: :::::i::ﬂ ::‘:
Ch. Mueen Afral 55 44 22
M. Isphanyar M. Bhandara 55 04 (v rvitation) 2
I M Aarmic Hussain Shiran 35 - 22
Mrs. Goshi M. Bhandara 18 04 2
Prof. Khalid Ariz Mirza | 55 44 12
Mr. Shabbaz Hader Agha | ] i 44 - ]
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ALIMT & KISk HE & REMUNSERATION

SAME OF DIRECTOR BOARD OF IRECTORS

MASAGEMENT COMMITTIE | ASE SOy T COMMITTLE
Mr. Pervaiz Akhtar 1L O1 (& favitaarhon ) a2
M. Jahanara Sajjad Ahmad 4% it | a

Leave of absence was granted to the members who could not attend meetingis).

DIRECTORS TRAINING PROGHAM

During the year, one Director of the Company has successfully acquired the certification under
the Directors’ Truiming Program from Pakistan Institute of Corporate Governance, As on
Junc 30, 2022, six out of eight directors had acquired certification under the directors” traming
program whereas the remamning two directors are exempted by the Commission.

Hence, the Company 1s now fully compliant with the Regulation No. 19(1) of the Regulations.

BOARD PERFORMANCE EVALUATION

The Company had conducted mternally Board Performance Evaluation in previous years but, for
the financial year 2021-22, the Company hired the services of M's FAMCO Associates (Pvt)
Limited, to carry out the performance evaluation of the Board of Directors, Board Commitices
and Chief Executive Officer.

The results of the Board Performance Evaluation, afier compilation, are shared with the
Chairman directly and then these are presented and discussed in the upcoming Board meeting for
consideration

The overall performance of the Board, including effectiveness of the role played by the Board in
achieving the Company’s objectives, was considered as satisfactory.

POLICY ON MEECTORS" & OFFICERS” REMUNERATION

As per the requirements of the Regulations, there is a formal and transparent procedure in place
for fixing the remuncration packages of individual directors. No director is involved in deciding
his / her own remuneration

The Board reviews the fee of the Executive, Non-Executive and Independent Directors for
attending the Board and committees meetings, which are subsequently presented to sharcholders
i the Annual General Meeting for approval. Remuneration to Chief Executive Officer and
Dhrectors are disclosed in note # 42 to the financial statements for the yvear ended June 30, 2022

The remuncrations of Board's Officers have been approved by the HR & Remuneration
Committee
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In accordance with the Section 208 of the Companics Act, 2017 and Companies (Related Party
Transactions and Maintenance of Related Records) Regulations, 201K, the Board of Directors
has approved the related party transactions upon the recommendations of the Audit Committee in
accordance with the policy approved by the Board.

TRADING OF SHARES

During the year under review, all the trading in the shares of the Company carried out by Major
Sharcholders was notified in writing to the Stock Exchange. Hesides this, no Director,
Executives and their spouses and minor children carried out the trade in the shares of the
Company.

CHANGES TO THE MANAGEMENT

During the reporting year, two casual vacancies of executive level were occurred due to
resignation of Chief Financial Officer and the sad demise of Head of Internal Audit of the
Company. However, new Chiel Financial Officer and Head of Internal Audit were appointed by
the Company in the due course with the approval of the Board.

The Board is confident that new team will perform with more passion and spint for the growth
and future prospects of the Company.

CORPORATE BRIEFING SESSION

The Company held the Corporate Briefing Session at its registered office on October 22, 2021
wherein the management of the Company enlightened the participants about the Company's
operation, financial performance and future prospects. The session was attended by the investors
and other stakcholders, followed by an interactive question-and-answer session.

CONTRIBUTION TO NATIONAL EXCHEQUER
During the year under review, the Company contributed a sum of Rs. 4,847 million (previous
year Rs. 4,315 million) to the Government exchequer on account of duties and taxes.

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE
The Company has fully complied with the requirements of the Regulations. A statement to this
effect is annexed with this repont.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The Company fully meets its obligation as a social corporate citizen. The Company always takes
constructive interest in social matters which may not be directly related to the business, and
makes donations to chantable institutions, hospitals and trusts. Duning the year 2021-22, the
Company has donated Rs, 3.5 million to vanous welfare & chantable organizations.
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COMMUNITY INVESTMENT & WELFARE SCHEMES

The Company continues to make available the use of its property to Association for Special
Persons (DARAKHSHAN). Presently 75 disabled women are getting traming in this vocational
school for helping destitute handicapped women to be self-reliant, computer literate and
contnbuting members of society. This property has been provided free of charge by the
Company with furmiture and fittings and the Company bears the cost of utilities and
Mainicnance.

WELFARE SPENDING FOR UNDER-PRIVILEGED CLASS
The Company continues to operate and support a Social Secunty Dispensary on its premises.
This caters the needs of workers and their families.

CORPORATE PHILANTHROPY
The Company continues to give donations to institutions in accordance with s policies for
corporate phulanthropy.

DONATIONS FOR PAKISTAN FLOOD AFFECTEES
Because of the unprecedented floods in the summer of 2022, millions of people were severely
affected badly by the floods resulting in shortages of food, shelter, water and medicines. In this
regard, the Company made following contnbutions for the affectees of the foods
o 5992 dozens bottles (500ml) of Murree Sparkletts;
e |, 100 umts of all types of juices;
* The items were purchased against one day’s salary contnbution of the Company’s
employees, as a result of which Rs. 2 million were collected;
¢ The donations were distnbuted through Pasban Collection Centre of Pakistan Arnmy and
Pakistan Air force Nur khan Base.

ENVIRONMENT, QUALITY, HEALTH & SAFETY MANAGEMENT SYSTEM

The Company and its management are strongly committed to achieving sustainable
Environmental & Quality Management which has been recognized by the socicty and
ndependent certification authonties. The Company supports sustainable development and
promotes  greater environmental responsibiliies and has  achieved Certification of 150
S001:2015, 45001:2018, 14001:2015. The Company continues 10 test the emissions and effluents
through laboratones certified by Punjab Environment Protection Agency. The central lab of the
Company has been accredited by Pakistan National Accreditation Council (PNAC) on IS0
17025:2017.

OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH AND SAFETY

The Company 15 strongly committed to conduct its business in ways thal provide all personnel
with a safe and healthy work environment. It has developed HSE management system that
ensures worker safety and incidence of occupational injunies and illness. The Company’s
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systematic approach is to manage Occupational Safety & Health under a well-defined standards
and requirements.

The Company has integrated safe working practices in all the comers of the organization by
developing rigorous set of operational controls to manage the known aspects and nsk of all
operations. Full implementation of these controls ensures that the Company is providing a safe
work place for its all employees.

ENERGY CONSERVATION

In order to utilize the natural resources in an effective and efficient manner, the Company has
installed Variable Frequency Drives (VFDs) which has resulted into clectnicity savings. The
Company has also switched all of its conventional electrical equipment/machines to energy
efficient devices for the conservation of energy sources, Further, the Company has lowered the
amount of electricity by illuminating the dark arcas by replacing Gl sheet with fiber sheets and
sky sheets in its halls which allows the natural sunlight to come across in the working areas.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION MEASURES

The Company has adopted 3R’s of solid waste management (Reduce, Recover & Recycle) so
that the Company can manage our natural resources more efficiently and to dispose of toxic
wasle material in better manner. In this regard, the Company has installed Effluent Treatment
Plant which is designed for treating the Company waste-water for its reuse or safe disposal 1o the
environment. Resultantly, the Company has reduced its waste-water wastage from 45.6% to 0%.

The Company has also framed environmental protection policy which promotes trees plantation,
pollution prevention, environment awareness sessions & trainings, water conservation and
various other steps to protect human health and environment. Further, the Company has arranged
many events to promote economic growth of the Country including but not limited 1o World
Environment Day, Dengue Awareness Campaign, Polo Tourmnament, ete.

CONSUMER PROTECTION MEASURES

The Company has adopted and implemented various safety parameters for the production and
supply of its products as per applicable laws. These parameters are not only related to the safety
of its workers but are also linked with the safety of its consumer. The Company, m onder to
promote best quality of its product, has labeled the awareness sticker on its product to break the
bottles after the consumption in order to avoid bogus fillings or reuse of the bottles.

EMPLOYMENT OF SPECIAL PERSONS

The Company promotes cqual employment opportunities for all kind of persons without any
discrimination and disabilities. Currently 20 workers/staff’ with different disabilines are
employed in the Company which is more than the quota fixed by the government authorities,
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BUSINESS ETHICS AND ANTI-CORRUPTION MEASURES

The Company conducts its business with integnty and in accordance with the high standards of
ethical behavior and in compliance with the laws/regulations that govems the operations of the
Company. In this regand, the Company has prepared and implemented the Code of Conduct
which covers business ethics, transparency, faimess, professionalism, conflict of interest,
workplace harassment, equal opportunity environment, ¢tc.

Further, the Company has also prepared and approved the Whistleblowing Policy to encourage
individuals to reveal and report any kind of matters which, in their opinion, may cause potential
financial or reputational loss to the Company. This policy also degrades wrong doing, fraud,
bribery, discnmination, black mailing, stealing and other activities in order to minimize the
chances of corruption. However, as per policy Company will not entertain anonymous
complaints/letters.

STATUTORY AUDITORS

The Audit of the Company for the financial year ended June 30, 2022 has been concluded and
the Auditors have 1ssued their Audit Reports on the Company’s financial statements and Review
Report on the Statement of Compliance with the Regulations. The Auditors M/s. KPMG Taseer
Hadi & Co. shall retire at the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting, and being eligible have
offered themselves for re-appointment for the financial year 2022-23. The Board proposes their
appotntment as Auditors for the financial year ending June 30, 2023 on the recommendation of
the Audit and Risk Management Commttee. This shall be subject to the approval of the
sharcholders at the Annual General Mecting on October 25, 2022

OUTLOOK
Though the Company 1s facing challenges in a difficult cconomic environment, the Company
continues o promote maximum value to shareholders.

APPRECIATION

We express our pleasure for the continued dedication and efforts of the employees of the
Company. Our thanks are also extended to our customers, supplicrs, bankers, advisors,
sharcholders and vanous government departments for their continuous support.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Eh‘{;‘ul\h‘nq\%f

Chairman

Rawalpindi September 22, 2022
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MURREE BREWERY COMPANY LIMITED

Goniled

Patiern of Shareholding
As of June 30, 2022

[ #oOf Shareholders | Shareholdings Slab | Total Shares Held |
44 1 ta 100 15,3138
136 101 ta 500 B3.062
126 501 to 1000 93,699
154 1001 to 5000 360,656
] 5001 to 10000 4569 B85
22 10001 ta 15000 272174
1% 15001 ta 20000 331,407
11 20001 o 25000 241.E59
E] 25001 {-] 30000 82,908
i 30001 {s] 35000 93,120
5 35001 o 20000 150,282
1 40001 o 45000 43,700
3 45001 to S0000 142,057

F ) 50001 to 55000 102,240

1 55001 to EODO0 56,954
2 60001 to 65000 120,505
1 70001 to TE000 121,706
1 20001 to 25000 81513
2 5001 o 20000 177,558
1 125001 1o 130000 125,285
1 145001 10 150000 146,884
1 155001 1o 160000 156,487
1 185001 to 150000 187,450

1 215001 to 220000 215,320
1 300001 to 305000 304,060
1 315001 L {:] 320000 319,441
1 355001 L {:] 360000 358,700

1 420001 1o 425000 420,232

1 455001 1o 460000 457,040
1 465001 io 470000 465,501

1 £710001 to 475000 470,050

i 500001 to SO5000 200,008

| 615001 to G20000 637,990

1 675001 10 620000 678516

1 720001 to 725000 710815
1 790001 to TI5000 790,100

1 BT5001 to E30000 B79,149

1 9ro001 to 975000 971,700

1 1000001 to 1005000 1,000,074

1 1700001 to 105000 1,701,527
1 3170001 to 3175000 3,174,540
1 4030001 to 4035000 4,030,810
1 5910001 1o 5315000 5914825

1116 217,663,630
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MURRLL BADWIAY COMPANY LIMITED

Pattern of Shareholding Report
Aj of June 30, 2027
Categories of Yharehoidery Shaeholdeny  BRares Held ParCEFLge
|Ddrecrars ard thair ipousein) and miner {sddren
R [SPANTAR AF BFARTUE 1 i 01 IR0 16 B4
AP, LSRN Bl WO a 14 I1% 131
BAEE GOSHI M BHANOARA 1 1000074 1ET
AR AARAIR HLILTATY SHIEAT) 1 1084 0ol
A JAHANARA SAAD Aeial 1 1,000 0004
CH. MULIN AFTAL 1 1852 i lvh |
R SHAHBAT fUATH R ACHHA 1 1178 il i) |
A EHALID ATIT MIRTA 1 1,200 0004
R, PR AT AAHTAR 1 1,000 0 K4
Associated Comparses, undertabingy and retated part=es ] 53144711 nm
I|NIT KO I an [ 0A a]
|8aris Deveiopment Finsnosl Inatiution, Noa Barasag Findnual Findndial bnattutiong i ] 10641 [ JlF
firswr anc  Companiey & 1,076 T&0 171
[Madarsbay snd Mutual Funds i 715,533 578
Genarad Pubilic
i Local 1,137 . 158 THP W ¥
b. Foreign b ] 1.716.215% LR
Foresgn Companie ] TR i 96
Crthern 11 M7 507 a7s
Total 1L.IT& IT E&Y 6D 100 0
Sharehaldeny haokdeng 10% of mare Lhired Hell  Perienlage
BN JARITHET D b BeddSDARE J. 7% BAT 11
BIR (PHANTAR B BHANOARA il i1l 2 ats bl
DF [DULE & COMPANY [PYT] LIMITID 4 509
EINGSWAY FUND-FRONTICR COMSUSAER FRANCHILES 5914 E)5 1 34
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Foreword

Murree Brewery Company Ltd ("MBC") has built a reputation for conducting its business with integrity, in
accordance with high standards of ethical behavior, and in compliance with the laws /regulations that
govern our business. This reputation is among our most valuable assets and ultimately depends upon
the Iindividual actions of each of our employees all over the country.

The MBC code of conduct has been prepared to assist each of us in our efforts to not only maintain but
enhance this reputation. It provides guidance for business conduct in a number of areas and references
to more detailed corporate policies for further direction.

The code of conduct applies to all affiliates, employees and others who act on our behalf countrywide,
within all sectors, regions, areas and functions.

The adherence of all employees to high standards of integrity and ethical behavior is mandatory and
benefits all stakehalders viz our customers, our communities, our shareholders and ourselves

It carefully checks for compliance with the code by providing suitable information, prevention and
control tools and ensuring transparency in all transactions and behaviors by taking creative measures if
and as required.
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General Principles

Compliance with the laws, regulations, statutory, ethical integrity and fairness, Is a constant
commitment and duty of all MBC employees and its divisions.

MBC business and activities have to be carried out in a transparent, honest and fair way, in good faith,
and in full compliance. Any form of discrimination, corruption, forced or child labor Is rejected.
Particular attention is paid to the acknowledgement and safeguarding of the dignity, freedom and
equality of human beings.

All MBC employees, without discrimination or exception whatsoever, respect the principles and
contents of the code in their actions and behaviors while perfforming their functions and according to
their responsibilities, because compliance with the code is fundamental for the quality of their working
and professional performance. Relationships among MBC employees, at all levels, must be characterized
by honesty, fairness, cooperation, loyalty and mutual respect.

The belief that one is acting in favor or to the advantage of MBC can never, in anyway, justify —not even
in part-any behavior that conflicts with the principles and content of the code.

The MBC Code of Conduct aims at guiding the *MBC Team “with respect to standards of conduct
expected in areas where improper activities could result in adverse consequences to the company, harm
its reputation or diminish it competitive advantage. Every member of the MBC is expected to adhere to,
and firmly Inculcate in his/her everyday conduct; this mandatory framework; any contravention or
deviation will be regarded as misconduct and may attract disciplinary action in accordance with the
Company services and relevant laws.
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Ethics, Transparency, Faimess, Professionalism

In conducting its business MBC is inspired by and compiles with the principles of loyalty, fairness,
transparency, and efficiency.

Any action, transaction and negotiation performed and generally, the conduct of MBC employees in the
performance of their duties is inspired by the highest principles of fairness, completeness and
transparency of information, clarity and truthfulness of all accounting documents in compliance with the
applicable laws in force and internal regulations.

Bribes, illegitimate favors, request for personal benefits of one or others. Either directly or through third
parties, is prohiblted without any exception.

It is prohibited to pay or offer, directly or indirectly, money and material benefits and other advantages
of any kind to third parties, whether representatives of governments, public officers or private
employees, in order to influence or remunerate the actions of thelr office.

Accepting gifts or any other form of hospitality is not allowed as commercial courtesy, as it may
compromise the integrity and reputations of either party, and can be constructed by an impartial
cbserver as aimed at obtaining undue advantages. Only company give aways are acceptable.

Company Information

MBL ensures the correctness of company's Information, by means of suitable procedures for in-house
management and communication to the outside.
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Conflict of Interest
MEC expects all employees to be free from actual or potential conflicts of interest.

A conflict of interest occurs whenever the prospect of direct or indirect personal gain may influence or
appear to influence your judgments or actions while conducting Company's business.

Each member of MBC has a prime responsibility towards the Company and is expected to avoid
activities or transactions that clash directly with the interests of the Company. Such situations could
arise in a number of ways. Some of the specifically forbidden situations are outlined below. This list is
however, neither exhaustive nor all-inclusive.in case of doubt, the advice of the management or Chief
Executive should be sought.

Any member of the MBC or any dependent member having an interest in any organization supplying
goods or services to the Company.

Any member of the MBC participating in any external activity directly or indirectly that competes with
the Company in any manner.

Any member of the MBC having direct, indirect interest or family connection, with an external
organization that has business dealings with MBC, without fully disclosing to the management of the
Company details of such connections and interests.

Any member of MBC having any relative working with MBC and not disclosing detalls of the same to the
management of the Company.
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Confidentiality

A member of MBC shall not keep or make copies of correspondence documents, papers and records, list
of clients or customers without the prior approval.

A member of MBC shall not disclose or reveal any information on the behalf of the Company to
print/electronic media as well as any other information medium. All information shall be released
through/by the Marketing department or designated individual (s).

Agreement with Licenses, Distributors, Agents, Sales Representatives, Suppliers or Consultants

Agreements with above shall clearly specify the services to be performed for the Company, the amount
to be pakd or receipts and all other relevant terms and conditions.

All payments or receipts and transactions shall be supported by documents.
Workplace Harassment

Every employee has the right to work in an environment that is free from harassment and in which
issues of harassment will be resolved without fear of reprisal. Harassment will not be permitted or
condoned within MBC whether it is based on a person’s race, color, ethnic or national origin, age,
gender, real, or suspected sexual orientation, religion or perceived religious affiliation, disability, or
other personal characteristic.

MBC demands that there shall be no harassment in personal working
relationships either inside or outside the Company. Such behaviors are strictly forbidden and are as
follows:

= Creation of an intimidating, hostile, isolating or In any case discriminatory environment for
individual employees or groups of employees

»  Unjustified interference in the wok performed by others

» Placing of obstacles in the way of the work prospects and expectations of others merety for
reasons of personal competitiveness or because of other employees

= Proposing private Interpersonal relations despite the recipient’s explicit or reasonably clear
distaste
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Equal Opportunity Environment

MBC recognizes the value of striving for a balanced work force and is committed to the principles of
egqual opportunity, eguality of treatment, and creating a dynamilc climate where diversity is valued as a
source of enrichment and opportunity.

All phases of the employment relationship —including, recruitment, hiring, training, promation,
compensation, benefits, transfers, layoffs, and leaves of absences-will be carried out by all managers
without regard to race, color, religion, gender, age, ethnic or national origin or disability.

Protection of Company Assets and Proprietary Information

Confidential Information is any information that is not publically known and that has value to
MBL. It may be in written, electronic, or any other form.

It is duty of each member of the MBC to protect, use and operate all the corporate assets with utmaost
care, due diligence and honesty. In case it s obsenved by any member of the MBC that the corporate
assets are being misused/ mishandled by some other members [ Indhviduals the matter should be
immediately reported to the Management of the Company. Corporate assets include moveable and
immovable property of the Company.

Dealing in Securities/Shares & Insider Trading

MBC employees must not deal in MBC shares on the basis of privileged information.

MBL employee are forbidden to convey inside information at any time to other person or encourage another

person to deal in shares of MBC or any other Company on the basis of such information, even if the
employee does not profit directly from the arrangement.

MBL employee should be aware of and comply with any local laws and regulations governing shares
dealings,In case any employee or his f her spouse deals in the Company” 5 shares, he / her must notify
the Company Secretary with full particulars within two days from the date of the transaction.

END
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REVIEW REPORT

To the members of Murree Brewery Company Limited

Review Report on the Statement of Compliance contained in Listed Companies
(Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed
Companies {Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 (the Regulations)
prepared by the Board of Directors of Murree Brewery Company Limited for the
year ended 30 June 2022 in accordance with the requirements of regulation 36 of the
Regulations.

The respansibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of
Directors of the Company. Our responsibility is to review whether the Statement of
Compliance reflects the status of the Company's compliance with the provisions of
the Regulations and report if it does not and to highlight any non-compliance with
the requirements of the Regulations. A review [s limited primarily to inquiries of the
Company’s personnel and review of various documents prepared by the Company
to comply with the Regulations.

As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an
understanding of the accounting and internal control systems sufficient to plan the
audit and develop an effective audit approach. We are not required to consider
whether the Board of Directors’ statement on internal control covers all risks and
controls or to form an opinion on the effectiveness of such internal controls, the
Company's corporate governance procedures and risks.

The Regulations require the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and
upon recommendation of the Audit Committee, place before the Board of Directors
for their review and approval, its related party transactions. We are only required
and have ensured compliance of this requirement to the extent of the approval of
the related party transactions by the Board of Directors upon recommendation of
the Audit Committee,

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe
that the Statement of Compliance does not appropriately reflect the Company's
compliance, im all material respects, with the requirements contained in the
Regulations as applicable to the Company for the year ended 30 June 2022,

gty Torme Hti Ate,

KPMG Taseer Hadl & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Islamabad
Date: 30 September 2022

UDIN: CR202210245BMMPEZXNJ
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Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance)
Regulations, 20019

Murree Brewery Company Limited
For the vear ended June 30, 2022

The Company has complied with the requirements of the Regulations in the following manner:-
1. The total number of directors are eight (08) as per the following:

a) Male ; Six
b} Female ; Two

2. The composition of the Board 1s as follows;

Category Names
a) Independent Directors Prof. Khahd Aziz Mirza
Mr. Shahbar Haider Agha
Mr. Pervaiz Akhtar
Ms. Jahanara Sajjad Ahmad

by Non-Executive [hrectors Ch, Mueen Afzal
Mr. Aamir Hussain Shirari
M. Gosha M. Bhandara
¢) Executive Director Mr. Isphanyar M. Bhandara

dy Female Dhrectors M. Goshi AL Bhandara
Ms. Jahanara Sajjad Ahmad

g

The directors have confirmed that none of them 1s serving as a director on more than seven
listed companies, including this Company;

4. The Company has prepared a code of conduct and has ensured that appropniate steps have been
taken to disseminate it throughout the company along with its supporting policies and procedures;

8. The Board has developed a vision'mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant
palicies of the Company. The Board has ensured that complete record of particulars of the
significant policies along with their date of approval or updating is maintained by the Company:

6. Allthe powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant matters have been

taken by the Board / sharcholders as empowered by the relevant provisions of the Act and these
Regulations;
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7. The meectings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman. The Board has complied with the
requirements of Act and the Regulations with respect to frequency, recording and circulating
minutes of meeting of the Board;

8. The Board has a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuncration of directors in
accordance with the Act and these Regulations;

9. The Company 15 fully comphant with the requirements of Directors” Training Program under
these Regulations. One director attended Directors’ Training duning the year;

10. The Board has approved appomntment of Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary and Head of
Internal Audit, including their remuneration and terms and conditions of employvment and
complied with relevant requirements of the Regulations;

1. Chiel Financial Officer and Chief Executive Officer duly endorsed the financial statements before

approval of the Board;

12. The Board has formed committees comprising of members given below:

a) Audit and Risk Management Commitiee

Mr. Shahbar Haider Agha . {Chairman)
Ch. Mucen Afzal - {Member)
Prof. Khalid Aziz Mirza - i Member)
Mrs. Goshi M. Bhandara - {Member)
Ms. Jahanara Sajjad Ahmad . {Member)
b) HR & Remuneration and Nomination Committee
Prof. Khalid Azniz Mirza . {Chairman)
Ch. Mueen Afzal - {Member)
Mr. Aamir Hussam Shirazi - iMember)
Mr. Isphanyar M. Bhandara - {Member)
Mr. Pervaiz Akhtar - iMember)

13. The terms of reference of the aforesaid committees have been formed., documented and
advised to the committees for compliance;

14. The frequency of meetings (quarterly / half yearly / yvearly) of the committees duning the year
2021-22, were as per following:

Four (04) Audit and Risk Management Committee and two (02) HR & Hemuncration and
Nomination Committer,

15, The Board has outsourced the internal avdit function to M's BDO Ebhrahim & Co., who are

considered suitably qualified and expenienced for the purpose and are conversant with the
policies and procedures of the Company;
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16. The statutory auditors of the Company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory

17.

rating under the Quality Control Review program of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
Pakistan (ICAP) and registered with Audst Oversight Board of Pakistan, that they and all their
partners are in compliance with International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on
code of cthics as adopted by the ICAP and that they and the partners of the firm involved in the
audit are not a close relative (spouse, parent, dependent and non-dependent children) of the
Chiel Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Head of Internal Audit, Company Secretary or
any director of the Company;

The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide

other services except in accordance with the Act, these regulations or any other regulatory
requirement and the auditors have confirmed that they have observed IFAC guidelines in this

regard,

We confirm that all the requirements of regulations 3, 6, 7, 8, 27, 32, 33 and 36 of the
Repgulations have been complied with,

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

ch’\ﬁtﬁ Atzal

Charman

Rawalpindi September 22, 2022
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
To the members of Murree Brewery Company Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the annexed financial statements of Murmee Brewery Company Limited (the Company),
which comprise the stalement of inancial position as al 30 June 2022, and the statement of profit or loss,
the staternent of comprehensive incomae, the statement of changes in equity, the stalement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summany of significant
accounting polickes and other explanatory information, and we stale thal we have oblained all tha
information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and beliel, were necessary fof the
purposes of the audit.

In owr opinion and to the best of our information and according 1o the explanations given 1o us, the
statement of financial position, statermnent of profit or loss, the statement of comprehensive income, the
statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the notes forming part thereof
conform with the accounting and reporting standards as apphcable in Pakistan and grve the information
required by the Companées Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017}, in the manner so required and respectively give a e
and fair view of the state of the Company's affairs as at 30 June 2022 and of tha profit, the comprehensive
incoma, the changes in egquity and its cash fiows for the year then ended,

Basis for Opinlon

We conducted our audit In accordance with International Standards on Auditing (15As) as applicabla in
Pakistan, Our responsibilities under thosa standards are further descnbed in the Auditors” Responsibidities
for the Audd of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have
fulfiled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We beleve that the audit evidence
wa have obtained ks sufficient and appropriate lo provida a basis for our opinion

Koy Audit Matters
Key audil matters are thosa matters that, in our professional judgment. were of most signficance in our
audit of tha financial statements of the curent penod. These matiers ware addressed in the context of our

audit of tha financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do nol provide a
separate opinion on these maliers.
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Following are the key audit matiers:

5. No. | Key audit matter

1| How the matter was addressed in our audit

1

| Revenue recognition

Refar notes 4_13and 31 o ihe financial
siaiemenis

During the year ended 30 June 20232,
the Company recognised net revenue of
Rs. 15246 milion from sale of food and

beverages.

We identified recognition of revenus as
a kay audl matter becauss ravenud IS
one of the key performance indicalors
of the Company and ghwes rsa to an
inherent risk that revenus could ba
subject o misstatement 1o maet

expactations or largets

Cwur audit procedures in this area incuded,
among othars:

= pbtaining an understanding of the process mlating
to recognition of revenue and testing the design and
implementation of key intermnal controls over
recording of revenue;

* CoMmpanng & sample of revenus ransactions
recorded during the year with sales orders, salas
invoices, debvery doouments and other relevant
undertying documents;

= comparing a sampla of revenus transactions
recorded before and after the year-and with the
sales orders, sales invoices, defivery documents
and other relavant underying documentation o
assass i tha related revenue was recorded in the

appropriate accounting period,

{ & comparing the details of a sampla of journal entries

posted o revenue accounts during the year, which
migt cortan specific risk-based criteda, with the
refevan! underhying documentation

»  assessing whether the accounting polickes for
ravenue recognition compbes with tha requrements
of the accounting and reporting standards a3
applicabla in Pakistan; and

= gyaluabng the adeguacy of presentation and
disclosures related 1o revenus o8 requined under
tha acocounting and reporting standards as applicabls
in Pakistan

Revaluation of Property, Plant and
Equipment

Refer notes 8 and 17 1o the financial
statements

Duiring tha year, the Company

recognired surplus aggregating to Rs.
462 milkon on revaluation of Land,

Our audit procecures in this area included,
amang others:

* imvolving our own valuation specialist 1o suppor us
in evaluating the appropriateness of valuation
methodology and assessing the reasonableness of
key esbmates and assumptions used n the
valuatons conducted by the professional valusr

engaged by the Company;
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8. No. | Key audit matter How the matter was addressed in our audit
buildings, plant, machinery and =
equipment carmed oul al 30 June 2022, | » evaluating the accuracy of information provided by
the Company 1o professonal valuer by inspecting
Wa identified the revaluabon of undarlying documentation;

property, plant and equipment as a key
audit matter due to significance of tha = assessing the appropriateness of accounting of
amount of revaluation surplus in relation rewaluation surplus and related adjustments in the
to the financial statements. financial staterments in accordanca with the
accounting and reporting standards as applicabla in
Pakistan; and

¥ pvaluating the adequacy of presentation and
disciosures related to revaluation of property, plant
and equipment a3 required under tha accounting
and reporting standards as applicable n Pakistan,

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditors” Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other informabion. Other information comprises the informaton mcluded
in the annual repor for the year ended 30 June 2022, but does not include the financial statements and our
audiors’ report thereon,

Chur opinion on the financial stalements does nol cover the other informaton and we do nol express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon

I connection with our audit of the financial stalements, our responsibilty is 1o read the other information
and, in doing s0, consider whether the other information is materially inconsisten! with the financial
slatemnants or our knowledge obtained in the audit or othensise appears 1o be materally misstated. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there s @ material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financlal Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial stalements in
accordanca with the accountng and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the requirements of
Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017} and for such intemal conirol as management delermines is Necossary
to enabla the preparation of financial statements that are free from material missiatement, whether dus o
fraud or error

In prepaning the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability o
continue as a going concem, disclosing, as applicable, matiers relaled to going concern and wusing the
going concermn basis of accounting unless management either intends to bquidate the Company or {0 cease
operatons, of has no roalsbe alternatie Bul 1o do 80

Board of direciors are responsible for oversesing the Company's financial reporting process,
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Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or ermor, and to issue an avddors’ report that includes
pur opinion. Reasonable assurance (s a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantse that an audt
conducted in accordance with I1SAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arisa from fraud or emror and are considered material if, individuaily or in
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected o influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of thesa financial statements

As part of an audd in accordance with 15As as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgement
and maintain professional scepbicism throughout the audit. We also;

»  [Identify and assess the rsks of matenal misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures respansive to those risks, and obtain audt evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate o provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for onae resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, mtentional omissions, misrepresentations or the override of internal control.

»  Obtain an understanding of internal controd relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opnion on the
effectveness of the Company’s intermal control,

= Ewvaluate the approprialeness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
ostimates and retated discliosures made by management.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether 8 material uncerainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's abilty 1o continue as a going concern. If
we conclude thal a material uncertainty exisis, wa are required 1o draw aftenton in our auditors’ report
to tha related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors”
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company o cease 1o conbnue a5 a going
Concem

* Ewvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whaether the financial statements represent the underhing transactions and evenis in
a manner that achieves {ar presontabon.

We communicate with the board of dreciors regarding, among other matters_ tha planned scopa and timng
of the audit and significant audit findings. including any significant deficlencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

Ve also provide the board of directors with a statement thal we have compbed with relevant ethical

requirements regarding independance, and communicala with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably ba thought o bear on our independence and where applicable, related safeguards.
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From the mafiers communicated with the board of direciors, we determine those matters that were of mosl
significanca in the audit of the financlal siatements of the current perod and are therelore the key audd
matters. We describe thesa matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulaton precludes pubbc
desclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
nol be commiunicated in our repor because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
Based on our audil, we further repor that in our opindon;

a] Proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies Act, 2017
(X1 of 2017,

b) the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss, the stalement of comprehensive
income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the notes
thereon have bean drawn up In conformily with the Companbes Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and are in
agreamant with the books of account and returms,;

£) investments made, expenditure incumed and guarantees extended during the year were for the
purpose of the Company's business; and

d} zakst deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinanca, 1980 (XW111 of 1580), was deducted by
the Company and deposited in the Central Zakat Fund established under section T of that Ordinance.

Tha engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditors’ report is Muhammad Danish.

gty Tom— Hti Ate,

KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Islamabad
Date: 30 September 2022

UDIN: AR202210243GBE6]R2DIS
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Statement of Profit or Loss

For the year ended 30 June 2022
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Statement of Cumprchenswc Income
For the year ended 30 June 2022
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Murree Brewery Cempany Liniled

Motes to the Financial Statements
For the yvear ended 30 June 2022

THE COMPANY AND ITS OPERATIONS

Murree Brewery Company Limited (“the Company®) was incorporated under the repealed Indian
Companies Act (now the Companies Act, 2017) in February 1861 as a public limited company in
Pakistan, The shares of the Company are quoted on Paksstan Siock Exchange Limited

The Company is principally engaged in the manufacturing of alcobolic beer, Pakistan Made Foreign
Liquor (PMFL), non-aleobolic beer, acrated water (non-alcoholic products), juices and food products,
mincral water, glass bottles and jars. The Company s presently operating three divisions namely
Liguor, Tops and Glass to carmy out its phineipal activities

The registered office of the Company is situated at National Park Road in Rawalpindi, Pakistan. The
sddresses of the Company™s corporate office, manufactuning facilities and warchousesowned by the
Company located in Rawalpindi, Hattar, Lahore and Gujranwalaare disclosed in note 17.1.5. The
pddresses of the Company s other sales offices’ warchouses are as follows:

= Khasra Mo 413, 414, 415, Khatoom Mo 565, 366 567, Khewat do 295, 2946, 297, Mawra Jalan
Bhrai Khan, GT Hoad, Tehsil Gujar Khan & Dhstnct Rawalpindi;

= HRatti Gali, Ayvubia Boad, Murree,

= Mansoor Abad, near Sant Sing rmbway gate, Jumra Road, Faisalabad;

= 164, near Winter Time, Small Industries Estate, Sahiwal and,

- 2E-B, Small Industrial Estate, Main Lahore Road, Sargodha

Management of the Company has evaluated the impact of COVTD-19 on these financial statements

for the year ended 30 June 2022 and concluded that there were neather any impheations of COVID-19

on the current operations of the Company, nor any adverse implications are expected in the long lerm

Further, COVID-19 has no matenal mmpact on the presented amounts and diclosures i these
financial statements.

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE AND BASIS OF PREPARATION

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the sccounting and reporting
standards as apphicable n Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan
comprise of

International Financial Reporting Standands (IFRS Standards), issved by the International
Accounting Standards Board (IASB) as nobified under the Companres Act, 2017, and

Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017,

Where provastons of and directives ssued under the Compamses Act, 2007 dilfer from the [FRS
Standands, the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed.

Dectails of the Company”s accounting policies are included in note 4.
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For the year ended 30 June 2022
2.2 Basis of measurement

These fimancial stmicments have been prepared under hisiorical cost conventon except for the
following items, which are measured on an alternative basis on cach reporting date.

Hem | Measurement basis

Land, building. plant, machinery | Revaluation model

and equipenent

Investment propenmy Fasr value model

Ievestrmenis held for radimg Farr value through profit or loss

Employee benefits Present value of the defined benelit habality, determmed
through actuarial valuation. less fair value of plan assets

The methads used to measure fair values are disclosed in the respective policy notes
23  Functional and presentation currency

These linancial statermenis are presenled in Pakisian Rupees { Rupee or PRKR ), which s the Company”s
functional currency, All amounts have been rounded 10 the nearest thousand, unbess otherwse statod

24  Use of judgments and estimates

Ia preparing these financial staternents, management has made judpments and extimades thal sffect the
appheation of the Companys scoounting polickes and the reported. amounts of assets, Habilmies,
ingoene and cxpeTes

The estirnates and sssociated sssumpiions are based on histoncal evpenence and vanous other factor
that wre believed 1w be reasonable under the corcumstances, the resuls of which form the basis of
making judgments about the carrving values of assets and habilities that are mod resdily sppanent from
other sowrces. Actual resulis may difTer from these estimates

The estimates and underlying assumptions are meviewed on an ongoing hases, FRevissns lo accounting
exlimales are recognired proapeciively.

Juwdgments, pssurmptions and estrmates made in apphang sccounting policees that have the effects on
the amounts recegnisad in the financial statements are as follows

MNote 41 snd 17 Useful Ives, residual values and depreciation method of property, plant ind
CuuspuTicid
Mode 4 pnd [K) Useful lives and deprecistion method of nght of use assei. and lease term and
discount rate wsed bo compute lewse luhilay

= Mote 4.2 and 1% Usehul Iives, ressdual valoes and smorttration method of wtangible asset
Mote 4.3 anad 21 Fair value of investmend property
Mote 4 4 and 2% Provision for aliw moving inveniones
Note 48 and MNote 49 Hevognition and messuremend of provistona and contingencees Ley
assurnpiions about the ikelihood and magnitude of an outflow of resources

- Note4.11 and 12 Measurement of defined bene it obligations: bey actuans] assumptions
SNote 4122 pnd 13 Recognition of deferred tax labibiies and assets and estimation of imgome Lay
provisions
MNote 471 and 28 Mewsurement of allowance for evpectod oredit kss of financisl sssets wl
armorTae] G

- Mote 4,72 Impairment ks of non-financial assets other than inventones

- Noe 413 and 31 Revenoe recognition

Charge in respect of Workens” profit participation fund has boen recogruned based on insdustrial profid
atiribatable 1o the producton and sale of food and beverages
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Fair wvalue measuremant

*Fair value’ s the price that would be recerved o sell an asset or paid to transfer a liabihiey i an
orderly transactsion between market participants at the measarernent date in the principal of, in its
absence, the most advantageous market to which the Company has sccess at that date. The {air valuee
of a hability reflects its non-performance nsk

A number of the Company’s sccounting poelicies and disclosures require the measurement of {air
values, for both financial and pon-financial assets and habilimies,

When one s avmlable, the Company measures the fair value of an mstrument using the quoted price
in an sctive market for that instrurment. A market is regarded as active if tramsactions for the asset o
liabality take place with sufficient frequency and velume to provide pnicing information on an ongoing
hasis,

If there o8 po gquoted price mman sctive market, then the Company uses saluatwn techmgues that
manimire the wse of relevant observable inputs and munimire the wse of unobservable inpuis. The
chosen valuation fechnique moorporates all of the faciors that market parbcipants would ke into
account in prcing & ransaction.

The best evidence of the far value of a financial mstrument on mitial recognition s normally the
transaction: price — e the fair value of the consideranon given of reccived. IF the Compady
determings that the fair value o imitial recogntion daffers from the transaction price and the fair valoe
i3 evidenced neither by 8 quoded price in an sctive market for an dentscal asset or liability mor hased
on 8 valuation techmique for which any unobservable mputs are judped 10 be msignificant i relation
1o the messurernent, then the financial instrument i imitially measured st fair value, sdpusted 1o defer
the difference hetween the fair value on initial recognition and the transaction price. Subsequently,
that dufference is recognised in profit o loss on an approprate basis over the life of the instrument but
no later than when the valuation is wholly supporied by obsenvable market dats or the transacton s
chosed out,

A number of the Company’s accounting policses and disclosures require the measurement of fair
valuwe, for both financial and non-financial sssets and labnlities.

The Company has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair values.
Management has overall responsibility Jor overseeing all sigrificant fair value messurements,
g huding Level 2 fair values

Management regularly reviews sipgnificant unobservable imputs and valuation sdjustments. 1T third
party information, such as broker quotes or prcing services, is used o measare Tar valoes, then the
management sssesses the evidence obtmned from the third parties to suppor the conclusion that these
valuations meet the requirements of the approved accounting standards as applcable in Pakistan,
including the level in the fair value hierarchy i which the valuations should be classified.

When messuring the Tar value of an asset or a habilty, the Company uses observable market dats s
far as possible. Fair values are categorized into different levels in a fair value hierarchy hased on the
inputs wsed in the valuatiom techmigues as follows;

Leveld 1 quoted prices {unadjusted j in sctive markets for sdentical assets or habilhibes

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level | that are observable for the ssset or
lLability, exther directly (ie. as prices ) or indirectly (e denved from prices)

Level 3: inputs for the asset or Lability that are not based on observable market data {unchservable
inputs )
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If the mpuis used 1o measure the fair value of an assct or @ labilsty fall mio &ifferent levels of the fair
value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement |s caicponred in its entirety in the same level of the
fair value hicrarchy as the lowest level inpit that is signd ficant wo the entore measurement,

The Company recogneres ttamden between levels of the farr value bocrarchy i the end off the
reporting penod during which the change has ocoummed

Accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan

The following Internatsnal Financial Reporting Standards (IFR% Standards ) as notified under the
Coompanics Act, 2007 and ihe amendments and imerpretations thereio will be effective for

sccounting peticads beganning on or after | July 2022

Onerous Coniracts - Cost of Fulfilling a Contract | Amendments 1o LAS 37 effectve for the snnual
periods beginning on of after | January 2027 clarifies that the "cost of filfilling a contract for the
purposes of the onerous contract assewimenl comprises the costs that relate doectly o the contract,
ing tudimg both the mcremental costs and an allocation of other derect costs o fulfil the contract, An
entity is required to apply the amendmernis o contrects for which o has not yet fulfilled all it
obligations af the beginning of the annual reporting penod in which i first spplees the smen drrsenis
{the date of iartial application). Restaternent of comparative information o nod required, instemd the
amendmenis require an entity W recognire the cumuolative effect of imadally apphing ithe
amcndmenis as an adjusiment o the opening balance of retained eamings of other compooent of

eupuary, is appropriaie, ai the daie of inital applcation

The following annual ioyprovements o [FRS Standerds 0] 82020 are effective for annual reporting
periods beginnung on of after 1 January 2022

= [FRS 9 - The amendment clarifies that an entity includes only fees paid or recerved between
the entity {the bormraerh and the lender, ncluding fees paid or received by eviher the entity or
ihe lender oo the other's behalf, when it applies the * 10 per ceni” test in paragraph B33 6 of
IFRS % in assessing w bether 1o derecognize a financial lisbilicy

= [FRS 16— The amendmeni partially emends Hustrative Example |3 acoomparmng IFR5 |6
by enclubing the ilasiration of reemburserment of leaschold improvemenis by ithe lessor. The
obpective of the amendmeni is 1o resolve any pobemiial confusion that might arise m lease
ERCETILIVES.

= IA%S 4] - The armendsment removes the requirerment i paragraph 22 of LAS 4] for entaties o
exclode tavatwn cash Mias when messunng the [y vale of a beolegscal asset using a
present value technique. This emendment enables the fair value mcssurement of beological
aasets on @ post -ty hasis

Property, Plant and Equipment; Proceeds before Infended Use [ Amendments o IAS 6] effoctive for
annual periods beginmng on of afier | January 2033 clanfed that sales proceads smd costs of dems
produced while bnnping an Hem of property, plant and equipment to the locatson and condiion
necessary for it 1o be copable of operating in the manper intended by managernent ¢ g. ' bem iesting
cie., are recognized m profit or loss m sccordance with appleable standards. The entify mensures the
cost of those iers spplying the messorernent requirerments of IAS 1 The smendment slso nemoves
the requinement of deducting the net sabes proceeds from cost of esting, An entity shall spply thosse
amendments retrospectively, but oaly to ttems of property, plant and equipment that are brought o
the location and condition necemary for them 1o be capable of opwrating 0 ihe manner intemdad by
mamagement on of after the beginning of the earliest penod presented in the fimarc il satements in
which the entity first applics the amendments. The entty shall recogniee the curmulative effect of
imitially apphying the amendments & an adjustment 1o the opening balance of retained carmimgs (o

other component of aguity, & approprisi:) at the beginming of that carleest persad presemicd

60




HAnnual .’:-'.JliI Pei £ _'..‘_r{ a’_l:;‘l_'.:_‘r

Marree Brewery Company Limiled

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2022

Reference to the Conceptual Framework (Amendments o IFRS 1) - Beference to the Concepiual
Framework, issusd in May 2020, amended paragraphs 11, 14, 21, 22 and 23 of and added paragraphs
A, 218, 21C and 23A w IFRS ) An entity shall apply thime smendments to business
combinations Tor which the sequitition date is on of afler the beginning of the firsd annual reporting

periond begimning on or after | January 2022

Classification of labilitics as curfend of fon-curment [Amendments 1o IAS 1) apply retrospectively
for the snnual penods begpmming on or after 1 Jaruary 2023, These amendments m the standards
have boen sdded o further clanify when a labality s glassified o current. Comverable debt may peed
o be reclassified o “corment”, The standard also amends the sspect of classfication of habibity as
mon-curtend by requinng the asscsamend of the entimy’s night 81 the end of the repoming penomd o
deler the settlement of hatbty for ot least fwebve months afier the reporting peniod. An entity’s
expectation and discretion at the reporung date to refinance of o0 reschedule paymenis on 8 long-
term hasis are no longer relevant for the classification of a labbity 83 current or non<urrent. An
entity shall apply those amendments retrospectively in accordance with LAS 8

Dsclosure of Acommitng Pehicoies (Amendments to 1AS | and IFRS Practice Statement 23 — the
Board has isued amendments on the appheation of maenaldy o disclosune of accounting policies
and 10 help companies provide useful scoounting policy disclosures. The key amendments 1o LAS |
inc| e
— requining compamies o declose thew matenal socounting policres rather than thert sigruficand
sccountimg policies;
— clarifying thal scoounting polises related 0 immatenal ansactions, other ovents of
conditkons are themselves immaterial and m such need not be disclosed; and
— glarifying that not all sceounting poliches that relate o matemal ransactions, other events or
conditions are themsehves matenal ko g company s financial staterments,
The Board also amended IFRS Practice Statement 2 i inchude pusdance and two addstional examples
on the applicatson of matemaliny o accounting policy disclosures. The amendments are effective for
annual reporting periods beganning on of after | Janwary 202V with earber applcation perminad

Definition of Accountng Eetimates | Amendments o [AS 8) |ntroduce 3 new deflimiton for
ascoouinting estimates clanfyng that they are monctary amounts in the financial sistements that are
subject to messurernent uncertainty, The smendments abo clanfy the relatonship  between
scoounting pobicies and accountieg estimates by specifving that an entity develops an sccounting
eitirmate o schieve the objoctive set out by an sccounting policy. The amendments are effective for
petiods beginning on of after | January 2023, with earlier application permutied, snd will apply
prospectively o chanpes in sccounning extimates and changes in accounting policies oocisting on of
after the beginning of the frst annusl reporting perwsd i which the company apphies the
pmenatmenta

Deferred Tan related io Assets and Liabohities arming from o Single Transaction | Amendments to
IAS 12} narrow the scope of the insial recopnition exempiion (IRE) so that it docs not apply to
transactions that grve nse o equal and offsctting temporary differences. As a result, companies will
need 1o recogniae & defornad tay asset and a deferred tax hability for temporary differences arising on
mitial recognition of a lease and a decommissioning provision. For leases and decommissioning
liskilities, the mssocisted defermed tan asset and [iabalibes will need w0 be recognized from the
hegmriing of the earbest comparative period presented, with any cumulative effiect recognised as an
adjustmeni o retained earnings o other components of equity B that date. The smemsimenis are
effective for snnual reporiag periods beginning on or alfler | January 2023 with earlier application

permtied
Sale o Comtnbubion of Assets between an Iovestor and ity Associate or Joint Venture [ Amendments
i [FRS 10 and IAS 25j — The amendment amends scoounting treatment on kes of control of

business or assets. The smendments also introduce pew sccounting fof less frequent transaction that
involves merther cost nor full siep-up of cenain retamed nicrests 1 assets that are not businesses.
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The effective date for these changes has been defermed indelimtely until the completion of a broader

feview,

The sbove amendments are not likely to have an mmpact on the Company”s financial staterments.

SIGHIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting pidecies as st out below have been applied consistently to all penods presented in
these financial satements:

Property, plant and equipment and advances for capital expenditures
Recognition and measurement

ftema of property, plant and squipment are measured at cost, which includes capitalired bormowing
comts, less accumulsted depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses except for:

Lands are statod at revalued amounts,
Buildings are stated af revalued amounts less accumulated depreciation and mmpairment losses., if
i

= Plant, machinery and equipment 15 stated a1 revalued amounts less accumulated depreciation and
pmpairrent losses, if any,
Capital work in progress and advance for capital expenditure is carmied at cost less impairment
boss, il any.

ltems in property, plant and equipment are recognized at revalued amounts based on valuation by
evternal independent valuer. Revaluation surplus on property, plant and equipment is credited 1o a
capital reserve in sharcholders” equity and presented as a separate ling item in statement of financial
i

Increases in the cammyving amounts ansing on revaluation of land, buildimgs, plant machinery and
equipment are recognised. net of tax, in other comprehensive income and accumulated in revaluation
surplus in sharcholders’ equity. To the extent that increase reverses a decrease previously recogniored
in profit or loss, the increase 18 first recognised in profit or loss

Decreases that reverse previous  meteases. of the same ssset are find recogmused o ofher
comprehensive income to the extent of the remaiming surplus atiributable o the asset; all other
decreases are charged 1o profit or loss

Long term leases of land in which the Company obtains contril of the land are sccounted for as
property, plant and equepment and presented as ‘leaschold land”

The cost of self-<comstrucied assets includes the cost of matenials and direct labor, any other costs
directly attnbutable to bringing the assets o a working condition for their intended use

The completed or / acquired capital work in progress and advance for capital expenditure s
transferred to the respective stem of operating fived assets when it becomes available for intended ue

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then
they are accounted for as separate items (major components § of property, plant and equipment.

Gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment i3 determined by companing the

procecds from disposal with the carmying amount of property, plant and equipment and s recognised
in profit or loss,
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Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure s capitalized only if it 15 probable that the future economic benefits
associstod with the expendirure wall flow o the Cormpamy

Depreciation

Depreciation 13 caloulsted o write off the cost of iems of property, plant and equipment less thewr
ceiimaied ressdual valoes using the strmighi-line method over their estrmated wsefol loves and
i recognised in profit of loss. Land and capital sork in progress are not deprecisted. Lessed assets are
depreciated over the shorier of the keased term and therr wseful bves unless of is reassonably certain that
the Company will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term, Rates of depreciation 'estimated
useful lives for curremt and comparative perwsds are mentsoned in note 171 10 these Tinancial
SLALCTTRTS.

Each year, the difference between deprecustion based on the revalued carmyving amount of the st
charged to the staterrent of profit or loss and depreciation hased on the ssset’s ongmal cost, net of fax,
is reclassified from revalustion surplus on property, plant and equipment fo unappropriaied profit

Deprecistion on addstions o property, plant and equipment is charped on prorsts basis from the daie
on which the iem of property, plant and equipment 15 scquired or capitalired while no depreciation is
charped from the date on which property, plant and equipment s disposed of / derecognired.

Depreciation methods, wseful Irves and pevdual valuss are reviewed st esch reportmg date and
adjusted if appropriate.

Reclassification fo investment property

When the use of & property changes from owner-occupied 1o myvestment property, the property is
remensured o fair value and reclassified accondmgly, Any pain anung on this remeasuremnent s
recogrised in profit or kess to the extent that it reverses 8 previous impairment loss on te specific
property, with any remaining gam recognined m (0] and presented in the revaluation reserve, Amy
loss is revoprised ia profit of loss, Hewever, o the exient that an amount & mcluded o the
revaluatson surplus for that property, the loss i recognised in OCT and reduces the revaluton surplus
within equity.

Intangible assats
Recognition and measurement

Intangsble assets that have fnite useful Tives are messured o1 cost less socumulsied amoriration end
ary sccurmilated impairrment losses.

Subseguent exponditure

Subscquent expenditure 1 capitalised only when it mcreases the future economic benefits embodsed
£ tl‘l:tdﬂ'ltflﬁc asset b0 which it relstes. All other expendifure i recognisad in profit or loss ss
inscurred.

Amortization
Amortiratios is caloulsted 1o write ofT the cost of intangible ssscts Jews their estimated residualvalues
using the sraight-line method over thewr estimated useful lives and is recognisedin profit or

loss. Amortieation raies estimated weful hves for current and comparatives are disclosed in note 19,1
io these finangial satemmemis

63




Annual Repart 2022

Marree Srewery Cempany Limiled

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2022

Amorsation methods, useful lives and residual values are revicwed ot each reporting dade and
adjusicd if appropriste

Investment property

levestment  propery i mitially measured ot cost and subsequently st fair salue with any
change therem recognised in profit or loss

Any gain or loss on disposal of imvestment property (caloulated as the dafference between the et
proceeds from disposal and the comving amount of the item) s revognised in profil of ke,

When imvestment property that was previously classafied as propeny, plant and equespment is sold, any
related amount ngluded in the revalustion reserve is transferred 1o retained camangs.

Rental income from investmenl property i recognisad as other revemss on 8 straighd -lme hases over
the term of the lease, Lease incentyves granted are recognised a3 an integral part of the total rental
meome, over the term of the lease

Inventiores
Stores, spare parts and loose fools

Stores, spare parts and boose boods are valued ot weighted sverage cost and net realorable valoe evoepi
for ems in transit which are stased at cost incwrred up to the staberment of financial positeon date bess
impasrment, if any, Cost comprises of cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the iiems
i theeir present location and condition. For ibems which are slow moving and | or sdentified 55 surplas
b the Company's requirements, sdeguate provasion is made for eny cicess book value over extemalond
nel realizable value, The Company reviews the carmying amount of Qores, spane parts and loose ols
on & regular hasis and provisson is made for obsolescence, if there s any change in usage patiern or
physscal fiorm of related siores, spare parts and bose loods

Ltock In trade
These are valued at bower of cost and net realizable valee, Cost 13 determined as follorax:

- Raw maierials sre vaheed af weighied average cost;

= Geonnds im transir are valued st incwrred cost, which inchedes invoice value and other charges
et thervon,
Ciomt of frmished goods, based on weighied average method, includes direct cost of production snd
approprate portion of production overheads,

- Work in process moludmg stocks wnder maturation are valued al kveer of ool omd net realirabile
value,

= Siocks under maduraiion and work m process are valued st manufsciunng cost whech represerts
derect materzal, labowr arsd an appropriate chare of production overheads

Cos compeises of oo of purchase and other costs curred in bnnging the ems o thar present
locatson and condsiion. Met realirable value sigrifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course
of business bess costs nevessan by 10 be mcurred in ordier o make o wale,
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Financial instruments

Recognition and initisl measurement

The Company mitially recognires trade debts on the date when they are ongonated. All sther Ninancal
asscts and financial lisbiliies are initially recogrized when the Company becomes & party to the
contractusl provisions of the instrument

A financial assci (unless if is trade recenvable without a sgnificant finsrcing component ) or financual
Habality is instially measured at fair valug ples of minus, for an iem not &8 FYTPL, transsction oosts
that are directly stimbutable fo i1s scquisition or fssee. A trade recenvable without significant financing
componerd s insbally measured af the transachon prce

Clazsification and subseguent measurement
Financial assel

On minal recognstion, s financial asset iv classified as measured at:

- amwertized cost;
- fair value through other comprehensme income | FYOCTT o
- fair value through profit or loss (FYTFL)

The classaficazson of financial asscis 15 bhased on the business modde] in which a financial asset &
managed and its contractual cash fow charactenstics

Frnancial sssets are mol feclassified subsequent o ther matial fecogniton unlbess the Company
changes its business model for managng fimancial assets, in which case all affected financial assets
arg reclassified on the Fird day of the fint reporimg penaod following the change in the buiness
mosde]

Amortlzed cost

A Nnancul asset s measered o smorteeed cost 1f i meets both of the following condstions and s ol

desipnaied as at FVTPL

(1) 1 s beld within a business model whose obgeciive 13 1o hold assets 1o collect contractual cash
flvwwand

(i} s gomiractual ferms prve nse on spevified dates w0 cosh fows thal are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Fair wvalue through other comprehensive incomae [FYOCI)

A debt mvestment v measared st FVOC] of B meets both of the following conditions and is not

designated as o1 FVTPL;

(1) i held withn g business mode] whose obyective s schieved by both collecting contractal cash
kv and selleng frnancial assets; and

(0] its pontractual terms give mse on speoified dates fo cash fows that are solely payments of
principal and milerest on the principal amount outstanding

[ imatial pecognition of an equity imvestment that is mol beld for trading, the Company may
mresvesably clewt b prosont sabseguenl changes in the imvestrmend s faer valog m OOCL This ebectsm i
made on an imvestmeni-by-imoestment basis

Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Al financial assets mol classified s messured 88 amortired cost or FYDC] as described above e
micusured @ FYTPL On initial recognitson, the Company may smevocably desipnate o financial ssset
that otherwise mocts the regusromenis to be mcasored ot smeortised cost or at FYOC] a5 st FYTPL if
doeng so eliminaies or wignificantly reduces an sccounting mawmaich that would ciheraise anse
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Subseguent measurement and gains and losses

Financial assets at amortised These assets are subsoquenily measured af amortired cost
cost using the effective mioresi method. The amortired ool is
reduced by impairment lomew Interest meome, foreign
exchanpe gains and losses and impairment are recognired in
profit. or ksa Any gaum or loss on de-recognition s

recognired i profii of loss,

Debt investments at FYOCI Thise aascts are subsequently measured s fair value. Inlerest
meome  calculsled wsmg the effective  mmlered  method,
foreign exchanpe pains amd losses and moparrmend  are
recognized i profin or loss. Oeher net gains and lowses are
recognired | OCL On de-recognition, gains and fosses
socurmulated in OCT are reclassified to profit or less

Financial assets at FYTPL These asscts are subsequently measwred al fair value, Net
gains and losses, including any interest or dnidend imcome,
are recepgnired i profit or Loss.

Equity investment at FWVOCI These assets are subsequenily measured sf  fair wvalue
Davidends are recognired as income in profit or boss unless
the dridend clearly represents a recovery of pan of the ol
of the investrnent. Other net pains and losses are recognired
i ChC ] and are mever reclassified o profic or loss.

Financial labilitles-Classification, subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial Lahilities are classified as messured ot amortised cost or FYTPL. A Dinancial hablity is
classified as a1 FYTPL of it is classified as held-for-trading, it 5 a derivatne or i 13 designated as such
on initial recogmition. Financial habilities st FYTPL are messured ot fair valee and net gains and
bomacs, including amy inberesi expense, are recognised m profit or foss. Onher finarcial habilines are
subsoquently messured of amortised cost using the effective interest methed. Interesd expemse an
foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised i profil or loss, Any pain or kss on derecognition
is also pecognisad in profil or koss

De-rocognition
Financial asseis

The Company derecognines & financial asset when:
(il the contractual rights 1o the cash Mows from the asser eupire; of
{is} if tranafers the nghts o recerve the contractual cash Mfows in @ transaction in which cither:
— substantially all of the risks and rewards of cwnersbip of the financial asset are franaferred. or,
— the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the raks and rewands of ownership
and does nod retain control over the financial ssset

Financial liabilities

The Company derevognises @ financial labiliy when s contractual obligathons are’ dischargod of
cancelled of expire. The Company also derecognires 8 financial labiliny when its terms are modified
and the cashflows of the modificd lishility are substantially different, in which case & now financial
liability based on the modified terms is recognired at fair value. Un derecognition of & fimancal
lisbility, the dilTererce between the casrying amount extinguished and the conmideration pasd
(inchsding amy non-cash assets transferred or habilities assumed) is recognized in profit or loss
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Offsetting

Fimancial ssscis and financial liabalitees are offsct, and the net amounit presented 0 the staterment of
financial position when, and only when, the Company currently has o legally enforoeable nght 1o
offsct the smounts and imtends cither to setthe them on a pet basss or to realire the asset and settle the
liabalicy simulianemsasly

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are mutially recogmeed at far value of conuderabion o be recerved
Subsequent 1o imtial recognition these are carmied ot therr amortired cost as reduced by appropriate
charge for expected credit bosses, if any. The Company holds the trade debts with the obyecine of
collecting the contractual cash flows and therefore measures the trade debts subsequently al smortired
cowt uning the effective mterest method. Tmpasrment of trade debts and other recervables v described
in ke 4. T,

Trade and other payables

Trade and other pavabies are initally recognized ai the fair valoe of the conssderation 1o be pasd m
future for poods and services received. Sabsequent e initial recogritien, these are carmied at
amortisod oost

Impairment
Fimancial assets

The Company recognires ks sllowance for Expected Credst Losses (ECLs) on financial ssseis
mcasured al amortised cosd. | For trade recenvables, the Company applics & simplified approach in
cabculating ECLs. Therefore, the Company does not track changes in credif risk, but instead
recognides o losa allwance based on bifenime ECLs st each reporting dsie. The Company has
established a provision matna that s based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
forward-lookimg factors specific 1o the debtors and the economic emvironment.

Lifetrme ECLs are those that resalt from all possible default events over the expected life of a
fimancual mstrument. The manimum period considered when estimating ECLs s the mavemuam
contractual penod over which the Company is exposed 1o credit risk

At each reportmg date, the Company assesses whether the financial assets carmed a1 amortieed oot
are¢ credil mpaired. A financual ssset s credi-impaired when one o more events thal have
detrmmental mmpact on the estimabed future cash Nows of the (nmencial ssets have ocourmed

Loma allowances for linancial ssscts messured s amortised codl are deducted from the gross camying
ameurt of the asscts

The pross carmying amount of a financial asset s wrnen off when the Company has no reasonahble
expectations of recovering a financial ssset in s entrrety or @ portion thereof

Hon<financial assets
The curmying amount of the Company's awcts are reviewed ot esch reporting date io determine

whether there is amy indication of impasrmend loss. [ any such indication exists, recovernble amount
i estimated in onder o determise the extent of the bmparient losa, if any, The recoverable amouwnt of
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an assct of cash-penerating unit is the greater of it value in we and sis fair valee less cost o sell. In
asscsaing value in use, the estimated furure cash flows are disoounted 1o their preseni value using a
pre-tay descount rake that rellects current market ssseisments of the tme value of money and the risks
specific to the ssset. In the absence of any informatson about the fair value of 8 cash-generating wnit,
the recoverable amount is deemed 1o be the value i use. For the parpose of impainment testing, assets
are prouped fopether mibo the smallest prowp of asscis that penerates cash mflows from contimuing use
thai are larpely wdependent of the cash inflows of other assets or proups of sssets (the “cash-
penerahing unid”)

An impairment loss i recognired 1f the carmyong emount of an ssset or i cash-generating uni
exceeds its estimated recoverable amount. Impairment losses ane recegrired in statement of profit o
ks Impairmeni losses in respect of cash-penersting units are allocated 1o the camying amounts of
asscts in the cash-penerating unii group on pro-rafa basis. An mmpainment loss s reversed only 1o the
extent thai the sset carmying amound does nol evceed the camyng amount that would have been
determuned, net of depreciation i amortization, if oo impabrment loss had been recognised

Provisicns

A provision is recogrised in the statement of fnancial position when the Company has a legal or
constructive ohligation a3 a nesult of a padd event, and ai i probable thai an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligatson and & relable estirnate can be made of the amount of
obligation. Provisions sre determuned by dicounting the expected future cash flows & & pre-tas
discount rate that reflects cument market assessment of brme value of money and pak specific o the
laability. The umsinding of discount 15 recognised as finance cosi,

Contingent llabilities

A contnpend Lability 5 doclosed when the Company has o posasble obligation as o resol of pass
events, whodse existence will be confirmed only by the ocoemence of non-occurtence, of o of more
uncertamn future events not wholly within the control of the Company; or the UCompany has & present
legal of constructive obligation that arises from past events, bl i 15 not probable that an ostflos of
resources embochying ecvmomae benelits will be regquired o setile the obligation, or the amouni of the
obligation cannot be messuned with sufTficient reliability

Share capital and dividends

Ordenary shares are classified 58 equity and recognised af thewr face value. Dhivedend dustribution o the
sharcholders i recognired as Lakility in the period im which it 18 dexlared

Employes benefits
Shart -term employes benefits

Short A emplovee benefit are expensed a5 ihe related service i provided. A Labdity i recognised
for the amount expected o be paid if the Company has a present legal o constructive obligation o
pay this smownt a5 o result of past service provided by the coployee and the obligation can be
estirmated relably,

Defined contribution plan = provident fund

Obhigations for contributsons & defined contribution plans are expensed as the relatad wrvice is
privided. Prepaid contnbutions are recognised as an sssed o the exient thal & cash refund of &
reduction in future payments i available. The Company operates 8 defimed contnbution provsdent
fund scheme for permanent employees. Contributions 1o the fund are made monthly by the Company
and employees at the rate of 12% of the basic salary. The fund is managed by its Board of Trustoes
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Defined benafit plans

Gratuity and pension plans

The Cornpany operates defined benefit plans comprivng 8 funded pension and an wnfunded gratusty

wheme covening all ehgpble employees completing the mmmimuem gualifying perwd of service as
sprctlied by the scheme.

The Compary s net obligation m respect of defined benefit plans s calculated separately for cach plan
by estimating the amount of future benefii that employvees have cormed m the current and prior
pereods, discounting that armount and deducting the fair value of any plan asscts

The cakculation of defined benefit obligations s performed snnually by 8 qualified sctuary using the
projecied wnii credin methad. When the cabculstion resulis in o polendial asset for the Company, the
recognised asset 5 lomited to the present valoe of economie benefits avalsble in the Form of any
futire refumds from the plan or reductions. i future contributions o the plan. To calculate the present
vilue of coonomic benefitg, consderatien i given to any applacable menirmum fumdmg reguirements,

Remessurements of the st defined benefit Labiliny, which comprse sctuanal gains and fosses, the
reiiom on plan assets (encluling mdorest) and the efTect of the assct coling (i any, excluding imierest],
are recognised immediately in other comprebensive mcome, The Company determines the net interest
expense | ncome | on the net defmed benefit lability / (sssct) for the peniod by apphang the discount
rale wied lo measure the defined benefit obligation ot the beginning of the annual period 1o the then-
net defined benefit habiliy [ {asset), taking imio sccount any chanpes in the net defined benefit
leabulety | {asact} durmg the peniod as a result of contributions and benefit payments. Mel inferest
eupense and other expenses related to defined benefit plans are recognised in prodin or losa.

When the benefits of a plan are chanped or when a plan is curtaided, the resulting change m berefit
that relates o past service or the puin of loss on cunailment s recognised immadiately in profit or
boas. The Company recognises gains and losses on the setilement of 8 defined benefit plan when the
sciilement ocours. The pension furd is mansged by trusiees of the fund who are responsible for the
establishment and oversight of the Fund's risk management framework

Compensated leave absences

The Company recognises provision for compensated absences on an undiscounted basis and are
expensad as the related semaces are provaded. A Habality s recognised for the amount expecied 1o be
paid et compersated absences i the Cormpany has a present legal o constroctive obligation to pay
this amount as 8 resalt of past service provided by the employee, and the obligation can be extimated
relubly. The compeniated absences are pavable 10 employees s per the Company”s policy. The
provision s determumed on the basis of last drawn salary and sccumulsied leaves balance st the
reporting date. Actuanal valustion has not been camed out e the impact of present valsstion s
cofmaderod immaterial in the comtent of overal] financial staternents

Income tax

Incwme tas evpense comprises current and deferred tan, b is recognised inprofit of loss except 1o the
exient that if relates o 8 business combination, of ilemm recogrised directhy in equity or in UL

Current tax
Provison for current ta s hased on faxable income for the year of the applicable tax rates after taking

mio sccoundt tax credit and tax rebates, (T any and any sdjustment to tas payable m respect of previous
year
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4122 Deferred tax

413

Dieferred tax i recogrsed m respect of temporary differences between the carrymg amounts of asscts
arsd liabalities for financial reporiing purposes and the amounts wed for tavstion purpoeses. Dieferred
1an s nod recognised for

= terrporary differences on inutial recognition of assets or liabilites i o ransacton that is not g
business combinaton and that affects penher sccounting nos taable prodit or loss;
= termporary differences related o investments in subsidianes, associsies and joint armangements

i the exient that the Company s able o control the timing of the reversal of the lemporary
differences and i i3 probable that they wall not reverse mn the foresecable fture, and
" taxable temporary dafferences armang on the imtal recogrrtion of goodwill,

Deferred i assets are recopnised for unused tan losses, unused fax credits 2nd dedectble lemporary
difTerences 1o the evient o is probable that future muable profits will be available against which they
can be wsed Future tasable profits sre dolermindd based on business plans for the Company and the
reversal of termporary differences. Deferred tan assets are revicwed ot each reporting date and are
reduced 1o the exienl that i is po longer probable that the relaiad wa benelit will be realized; such
reductsons. are reversed when the probabilay of future tawable profiss improves. Unrevognured
deferred tan assets are resssessed ot each reporting date and recognised o the entent that o has
become probable that future taxsble profits will be evailable sgaimst which they con b used.

Deferred tan ks messuned af the tax rates that sre expeciad o be spplicd to temporary differences when
thew reverse, using ax rates enacted of subsiantially enacied st the reporting date. The measurermend
of deferred tan reflevts the wan comeguences thal would follow from the manner i which the
Compary expects, of the reportmg date, o recover of soithe the carrying amount of its gsscts and
Labilstien

For this purpose, the carrying amount of mvestment property measured af (s value s presumed o be
recovered through sale, and the Compary has not rebutied this asswmptson. Deferred tan aasets and
lushilities are offset if certamn crilenia sre met

Revenue froem contracts with customerns

Fevenue is measmed bhased on the consideration specified m a contract with o cusiomer, The
Company recognises revenue when it fransfens control over a good of service 10§ Cusiome?

The following table provides information sboul the nature and brming of the salsfacuon of
petformance obligatons in contracts with customers, inchshng sagmificand payvment fermm, and the
related pevenioe necognition policies

Type of product | Nature and timing of satisfaction of Revenue recognition
performance obligations, including | policies

B significant payment terms {
Liguor = Akwoholie | Customers obain control of alooholic Revenue is recopnired when
beverages Beverages when the poods are dispasched | the poods ane despatched from
from the Company s warehouse. lmvolces | the Company™s
ary penetatod al that poasd in ime warchouse, Advances recervead

Mahvanee pavinend is recerved and there s | are ingludded m contract
o fancing componcnl. o discounts or | labilibies

returns are offered for alcoholic
| beverages
| Liguor - Non- Customer obtasn control of non-slcohalic | Revenue is recognised when
MAcohohic beverages | beverages when the poods are deliversd the goods are delrvered and
i and have been sccepted by the have been scoepied by
custormers &l their premises. Invoices are .
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generated af that point in tme. Advance | customers af theit premises.
paymen 18 rocerved and there m mo

(inancing conmpuonend. Dhscosunts are

offered to customers based on approved

rates [

Cilass products

Customers obtarn comine] of glass | Revenue is pecognised when
prochucts when the poods are duspaiched : the goods are dispaiched from
from the Company s warchouse. Imvoices | the Company s warchouse
are peneraied and revenue i recognised
at that point i time. Advanos payment s
received and there is no financing
componcal Dascounts are offerad 1o
customets based on approved rates

Tops - Local sakes

L asturmers oblam eontred of fops prowducts
when the poods are delivered o the
customer s premises. Invoices are
generated i the end of the daey when cash
is codbected from the waleuman Sales are
made on cash bass, however, s
contracts allow credit and there b no
financing component, [hacounis are
offerad o customens based on approviad

rales

Hevenue s revogmised when
the poods are delivered to the
CUSIETIET & PIETIHSES. |

Tops - Sales 1o
distribmitors,
inalifutions and
departments (Tops
tramsparter)

| Customners obiain control of Tops

T Revenue in Pecogriaed w hen
the poods are delivered 1o the
CUsNTET S PrEmiseL

products w ben the goods are debivered o
the cumtomer s fremies Imvenices are
geocraied af that poind 10 time which are
usmally payable within 45 days and
revenue s recognised at that point i
time. Some contracts sllow credit and
there is mao significant financing
component. [hscounts are offerad 1o
customers hased on approved rates

| Tops Saley  to
| dustribugtons,
insistutsons amd

{Cusdommer
Erassporier

Customers obtam control of tops products | Revenue is recognised when
when the poods are boaded to the the goouds are baded to the
custommer 8 vohocle lavoces are custiomer s vehicle,
penerated at that posnt in time whsch are

usiially payable withan 4% days amd

revenus is recogidsed al thal poand m

e, Some contfacts sl credin and

there s Bo sipnafacant financing

componctl. Dascounts are ofTered 1o

customers hased on approved rales

J

Some contfacts perrml the customet o return iterm. Returned poods are exchanged only for new
pounds - e, Bo cash refunds are offered. For such contracts, revenue is recognised to the extent that i1
i+ highly probable that & significant reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recogrised will mod

(LR
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Contractassats

The oonirsct asscts premandy relaze 1o the Compary's rights o comsideranon for sale of grads
provvided thess are mol yet billed ai the reporimg date, The comiract saseiy are tramfemed o trade debis
when the rights becoene unconditiomnal

Contract liabilities

Contract lsbslity s the obligation of the Company to ransfa goods o 8 customer for which ihe
Company has reveived consideration from the customer. If 8 customer pays comssderabon before the
Company transfers goods, & contract liskslity i recognimned when the payment s made. Coistrad
liabilities are recopnued @y revenoe when the Company performs its performance obligsions under
the coniract

Contract coats

{1} Ciosts 8 obtarn a contract — Incremenial costs of obtamang & conrsct e sales commission paid io
therd partics are aceounted for o coniTact costs and are ransferred 1o profit or loss scoound based on
the sysiematic paitern of revenue. The Company capitalises such costs if nevenue relating o such
contract has nod been recognired and the Commpany expects 1o revover such cosia

fuf Costs fo Full fill & contract — Costs that relate darectly io 8 contract and are specifically identified,
penersie of enhance resources of the entity and are expoctod fo be recovered Le. direct ininspoTiation
and msurance costs are sccounted fof as contract costs and are tnsfermed o profit or loss scooant
bhased on the sysicmatic pariern of revenue. The Company capitalires such costs of revenue pelating o
susch contract huis not been recognined

Cash and cash egquivalents

Cash and cahy equevalents comprise cash and bank balances and shori-lerm bommsings ender mark-
up arrangemens, uwed by the Company in the maragement of its short -lorm commitments. Cash aeed
caih oquivalents are carmied in the statement of financial postion a1 smorsod cost

Forelgn currency ransactions

Transactions in forcign currencees are ramlsied in PFRR (functional snd presentation corrency b of the
enchange rate privailing on the deie of ransascbon. Monetary sssets aned Labslities in forign
clarrencies are manslated into PRR at the raies of eschange approvimating those prevalent at the daie
of statement of financial peastion. Forewpn enchange gains and losses resulting from the seithement of
such tramssctions snd from the ramlations of monetary asscts o] Labiltses demossinsted in foreign
currencies are recognased in the profit or low

Operating profit

Operating profif is the result generated from confinuing principal revenue producing actvities of e
Compary 8 well 5 other income snd expenses related o operating sctivitses. Operating profil
euchales finance ineome and Minance costs and income e

Finance incoma and finance cost

Fimance inoome i ludes imerest income on funds imvested. Markup ¢ saterest icome 15 revognised as
it mcorues in the statemnent of profit of koss, wang the effective interest rate method

Finance cost comprises inferest experss on borrowings end hank charges. Pmance ehponses @i
recogmsed usang the efféctive interest rate method. Borrowing costs incurred Ffor the construcnon of
any qualifying ssset are capitalured during the period of time that is required io compleie and prepare
the asset for iy intended use or when substantially all the sctivities necessary lo prepare the qualifying
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anset for it intended use or sale are complete. Bormowing costs that are ol directly actributable 1o the
soquisiion, construction of production of 8 qualifving ssset are recognired in statement of profit or
loss

Segment reporting

l'ﬁu'rltmg sCpTCTIY. are rq!nrl.ni m 8 manner consisdend with the internal reporting Frm'h.]nl b0 the
chief operating decison maker, Managerrent monitors the operating results of its business sepments
scparately for the purpose of making decisions about resource allocation and  performance
assrssmenl Segmend results, asscts amd habnhbes inchsde nems dorectly attmbuotable 10 a segrment as
well as those thal can be allocated on 3 ressonable basis. Unallocated sierms comprise mainky
imvestment property, imvestmcnis andother CEPCTISEN

Earnings per share

The Company presents basic and diluied camings per share (EPS)L Basic FPS ds caleulsted by
dividing the profit or loss arributable to ordinary sharcholbders of the Company by the weighiad
average number of ordinary shares outstanding duning the yeas, Dhiluted EPS is determuined by
sfyusting the profit of boss anributsble o onbmary sharcholders and the weighiod averige numbser of
ordimary shares outstanding, sdjusted for the effects of all diutive polential ondsnary shares.

Leases

The Company gisesses whether & contract is of contains & lease af inception of the contract, This
asscanment imvolves the evercise of Judgemnent about whether it depends on a specified asset, whether
the Company obtams substantially all the economic benefits from the use of that assct, and wbether
the Compary has the right to dimect the use of the asset

The Company revognires o nghi-of-use (ROU) asset and & lease Lability a1 the lease commencement
date, encepl for short term leases of 12 months or less and leases of kow value nema, which are
experised m the stsiemend of profit or loss on a straighi-line basis over the lease erm.

The bease lability 15 instially measured at the present value of the lease payment that sre not paid o
the commencemend dade, discounted using the interest rute impliciz in the lease | this rate cannot be
readily determined, the Company uses the incremental borrowing rate (IHR ) applicable in the markes
for such leases. The IBR is the rate of interest that the Company would have 1o pay 1o borrow over &
sirmalar ferm, and with a similar securiy, the funds necessary 1o obisin an swet of 3 umilar value W0
ihe right-of-use asset 8 simular eoomomae emvironment, The DR therefore reflects what the
Company “would kave o pay’, which requires estimation when no observable rates are available o
when they meed 1o be adjusted 1o reflect the ferms and condstions of the lease. The Company estimates
the [BE using observable inputs {such as market interest rates ) when available and is requirad o make
cortaim entiny -specific estimates

The lense liabality is subsequently measuned ai amortized cost using the eifectve interest mate method
and remeasured {with & coresponding sdyistment o the related RO asset) when there is a change in
future lease payments in case of renegodiation, changes of an indes or raie or in case of resssessment
of options.

Al inception, the RO asset comprises the initial lease Liability, initial derect eosts and the obligations
to refurbash the swet, bess any incentives granted by the lessor. The ROU ssset is depreciated over
the shisrier of the lease term or the wseful bife of the underlying msact. The ROL asset is subject io
testing for impairment if there is an msbicator for impairment, o for owned ms ot
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CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING  STANDARDS, INTERPRETATIONS  AND
PRONOUNCEMENTS

The following new and amended standard and interpretation that is mandatory for sccounting peniods
beganning 01 July 2021;

= Intergst Hate Benchmark Feform — Phase 2 which amended [TFRS 9, 1AS 39, [FRS 7, IFRS 4 and
IFRS 16

This amended sandard and inferpeetation s consldered ot to be relevant and does nol have amy
significant effect on the Company’s [inancial statements
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EMPLOVEES FROVIDEST FUSD THLST

All the investiments ot of providest fund trust have been made in scoordance with B provissms of Section 718 of the Companses Act, 7017
ind cossdimoes specified thercunder

IE'! piieq |
SNUMBER OF EMPLOYEES {amber) (b )
Employees mt year end (WLl 1 80
A virage eephrrre during the year 1,7l 1674

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Board of Directors of e Company in the meeting hebd om Xnd September 3007 propossd final cash dividend of 10 e Bs J-per dhare
(3020 100% Le. s 10 per sbare). Mﬂmﬂmhuﬁmwhﬂﬁ;m_“m-wﬂng hah
will by sccounted for in the smiement of chasges i equity 5 m sppropriation s the unspproprisied profil in the vear endisg 30 Jung 2073

GENERAL

Dwvidend payuble ot Mushm sharcholders o deemed 0 be approprissed fom mcome ansmg fom e Companmy's imvsEments, sos-
aloakadic peofite and Pemtal income.

AFFROVAL OF FINANTIAL STATEMENTS
These fnancsal seteswnts wery suthorieed for meoe by the Bosrd of Drecions of the Company in e meeting bk on Lind Sepiemchen 2077

= Ml
— — e L — L Sy
CHIEF FINASTAL I ER [ T (4] ]
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PROXY FORM

[Section 137 of the Companies Act, 2017]
MURREE BREWERY COMPANY LIMITED
3-National Park Road, Rawalpindi

L.,

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The Company Secretary
Murree Brewery Company Limited
3-Manonal Park Road, Rawalpindi

1/ We w0 of do or wio_ N Fo
being a member of Muorree Brewery Company Limited and bolder of ordinsry shares as per

registered Folio / CDC Participant I8, — and O Sub Acoount & [ UDC Investor Account [1D &

~ hereby appoini Mr.o Mo s'0 or d'oor wo

CHICH o having repistered Folio |/ CIX Pamicpant 1D #,

and CDC Sub Aceount # 0 DO Investor  Accourt 1D 8
g oy our prosy o atend and vole onomy'our behalf af the Annual General
Meeting of the Company to be held at 9:30 a.m. on Teesday, October 25, 2022 21 Registered Office. 3-National Park
REoad, Rawalpindi or af any adjournment thereof,

[ Al Hs 4
REevenus Stamp Signature of Member
——

1 Signature should agree wiih the specmen
registered with the Compamy )

Dated thes day of October, 2022

Wilinisses:
1= Sepmalisre 1} Signature
Mame 1 e Marne —
Adudress Addreas

O™ o Passport #
Lmpertant netes:

1. Yo person shall act s provy gnless he homself s member of the Uompaiy, eacopl thal 8 corporate iy oy sppacnt & person
who & not 8 member. Son-patural members st fomish board pesolution ¢ power of atormey wath spevamen sgnatisres of

provy along with the prowy form

CMWIC or Passpon #

1, Aneseed copses of the CNIC or the Passport of the member and the proay shall be fumished sith the prooy forme The pross
ahall produce original CNIC or prigimal passport af the tme of the mecting

A Prosies i order o be effective must be recerved by the Compary, Muorree Brewery Company Limised , 1-Matonal Park Road.
Fawalpench pod less than formy-cight (48) bowrs {excludimg non-working days | before the time for bolding the meeting

A, T Shareholders ard ther provies are cach roquesied w pteach sn anesied photocopy of thewr Computerieed Sabomal fdentity
Card (CNIC) or Paasport with the provy form before submisason o the Company Onginal CNIC | Passport m regquered o be
produced ot the tme of the meeting )

% In case of corporate entity, the Hoard of Diseqion® resclunon | power of atomey with specomen sgnature of the perwon

rasminated o represent and vole on beball of 5e corporate emtety shall be submatied {nless it has been provvided carlicn) along
with proxy form 1o the Compary
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The Company Secretary
Murree Brewery Co. Ltd.
3-National Park Road,
Rawalpindi.

119

AFFIX
CORRECT




iy
137 X200k
e F G
IJ.-"I".H'F'.--..-:,.,F-.—J
el il
Ja by
A Ll
e bl F¥.a
I (R L —— (A T PN

R s A R R R R S E i S Tt e gl
FhaTardy eRadist CAUBFY b Do S T G R RN e 0
,_r.‘.;;_h.ri.._f‘.-__ PPN < | 0 109,11 (1. | W o (R 3 OO P

e rpdlie Serfob S remanln L et T3  mn e By Tt 20 25

T v T
.-_'f,,".'aJr',;'_’:l;.-l.'.-r.-’d.ir.l'.._.‘,'{.__."

Jﬂ{-’f—;i _'.lsl L-:p_-.-l-r

202270 o - R A § Py
:wltif
PR . © . - WPRRPE | . o 1

r [
I* TrTTTTTTETTTTTTTETTTTTTTTETTTerwes

------------------------------ .'i N i o 3

*

- .:f:-hlhfi_hl-l.rj:;l!JJ;F'rqul-r T -r'— fh_k ".- L h. r

:,,._,":;:‘71

bl s -r"_.l-_.,:‘.f'f'.-.'._.ﬁ-;d 1 " pEEIVERSSON ity LR 1 S SE A S AL ..-*1-“.."{.’.."' 1
o med, "'I..""":.;,,- .;.,-"-{.-'p..._, ,H.-: floJt o} i2ia ot A L ;..._-.r: % et s

ltinf Fd gl CNIC "".,:I"' Eh b S Bl T ._._-,In-,__.-'__. 74 Lk A 2
;#{JE,?H.-IL-.,'.I,F!"': 14-._1:‘.,.“,,5;,1’{;,.;‘..,-:...:.,!': (4B A P ..,—-..,-;u-.i,,-'-.;.;- [ P |
.

i_‘:ﬂ.ﬁ.;#",af. o AR .‘I'rfu-._LH 'u{.,!'._n._h'._f}Li'_? ”F:Fr.l:#..‘,..'-l.'*._'..-.-'r*,u.-_"fa. gt e = e iig4
dadnrl L0 AL v .,-t-::m:: g} EE R

.,,.a.,ﬂ,u.f;_;LJr o I ¥ A of TIPS N n_iu..p-m S H PP ,u_,n__,.,...-;____--;.... -5

- i .
N

120



Murree Brewery Company Limited

DIVIDEND MANDATE FORM

Bank Account Detail for Payment of Cash Dividend
Man r nie

Dicar Sharcholder,

This 15 1o miorm you that in sccordance with the Section 242 of the Companies Act, 2017, any dividend payable in cash
shall only be paid through electronic mode directly into the bank actount designated by the entitled sharcholder. Please
note that giving hank mandate for dividend payments is mandatory and m onder o comply with this regulatory
requirement and to avail the facilsty of drect credit of dividend amount in your hank account, you are requested 1o
please provide the follang inforrmation:

Details of Sharcholder
Name of shareholder =l
Father's Mame
| CID}C sccount Mo ! Fola Mo
CNIC / Passport Mo
| Cell number & Landline number | ==
| Ermail acdifress (Mandatory)
Details of Bank Account
:ili!!gu.f.lh.nl Account = _- 3
Intcrnational Bank Acvownt \[PTK] [ [ | [ | | | | HEERERAERERRGI TR
Mumber ([BAN] = Mandstory™ N |
[ {Kimdly provide your socurate IRAN number afier consulting with your respective bank |
branch sirce in case of any orror of msasen in given THAN, the Company will not be
held responsible in any manner for any loss of delay in your cash dividend payment)
Hank's Marme o |

Brarch Name {

Branch Address | ' |

It is stated that the above-mentionsd information is correct and in case of any change theremn, |/ we will immedustely
intimate Participant Le. Muerree Brewery Company Lirmted or ity Share Regusirar i¢. CDOC Share Registrar Services
Limited, CTH House, 99-B, Block B, S M.C H.S, Main Shahra-c-Faisal, Karachi 74300, Pakastan, sccordimghy

._"ii;ntlrr of Sharcholder

You are requested to kindly send us this letter immediately duly filled tn and signed by you along with legible
photocopy of your vald CNIC |/ passport ot our sddress, Murree Brewery Company Limited, 3-National Park Road.
Rawalpinds, Pakistan,

REegards,
Company Secrelary

Murree Brewery Company Lirmted
3-National Park Road, Rawalpindi, Pakistan
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MURREE BREWERY

1509001,14001, 45001 & HACCP Certified Company

3-National Park Road, Rawalpindi
www.murreebrewery.com
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